
California State University Channel Islands Site Authority 
California State University Channel Islands Financing Authority 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

December 2, 2024 at 11:30 a.m. 

Location: California State University Channel Islands 
John Spoor Broome Library, Handel Evans Conference Room 

Camarillo Street, Camarillo, CA 93012 

http://www.csuci.edu/siteauthority/ 

MEMBERS: John Broome, Jr., Chair; Laura Hernandez, Vice Chair; Trustee Larry Adamson; Assistant Vice 
Chancellor Robert Eaton; Supervisor Jeff Gorell; Supervisor Vianey Lopez; President Richard Yao 

ALTERNATES: Vice President Bradley Olin; Supervisor Kelly Long; Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo 

OPENING STATEMENTS 

1. Call to Order (Broome) and Roll Call (Sotelo)
2. Public Comment Period (Pursuant to Government Code section 11125.7) (Broome)
3. Board Member Comment Period (Broome)

a. Acknowledge change in Site Authority Chief Counsel from Marc Mootchnik to Catherine
Barrad

4. ACTION: Approve Consent Agenda (Broome)

CONSENT AGENDA 

5. ACTION: Approval of Site Authority/Financing Authority Board Minutes of September 9, 2024
(Sotelo)

6. ACTION ITEM: Acceptance of the Site Authority Standing Audit Committee Meeting Minutes
(Hernandez)

7. ACTION ITEM: Approval of Site Authority Audited Financial Statement (Hernandez)
8. ACTION ITEM: Approval of Financing Authority Audited Financial Statement (Hernandez)
9. INFORMATION: Anacapa Canyon Operations Report (Lazarus)
10. INFORMATION: University Glen Operations Report (Lazarus)
11. INFORMATION: CI Power/DWR Update (Olin)
12. INFORMATION: Financial Report (Bracamontes)
13. INFORMATION: Quarterly Investment Report (Lazarus)

INFORMATION AND ACTION ITEMS 

14. ACTION ITEM: Approval of 2025 Meeting Calendar (Broome)

S ITE AUTHORITY 
F INANCING AUTHORITY 
CSU Channel Islands 
Camarillo, CA 93012 
 

1

http://www.csuci.edu/siteauthority/


 

 

15. INFORMATION: University Glen/Anacapa Canyon Governance Structure Update (Lazarus) 
16. INFORMATION: University Glen Community Update (Lazarus) 
17. INFORMATION: Campus Update (Yao) 
18. ADJOURN 

 
 
Public Instructions on Addressing the Site Authority Board 
 
Members of the public are welcome to address agenda items that come before standing and special 
meetings of the board. Comments should pertain to the agenda or University-related matters and not to 
specific issues that are the subject of collective bargaining, individual grievances or appeals, or litigation. 
Written comments are also welcome and will be distributed to the members of the board. The purpose of 
public comments is to provide information to the board, and not to evoke an exchange with board 
members. Questions that board members may have resulting from public comments will be referred to 
appropriate staff for response. 
 
In fairness to all speakers who wish to speak, and to allow the board to hear from as many speakers as 
possible, while at the same time conducting the public business of their meetings within the time available, 
the Chairperson will determine and announce reasonable restrictions upon the time for each speaker and 
may ask multiple speakers on the same topic to limit their presentations. In most instances, speakers will be 
limited to no more than three minutes. The totality of time allotted for public comment at the board 
meeting will be 30 minutes, and speakers will be scheduled for appropriate time in accord with the 
numbers that sign up. Speakers are requested to make the best use of the public comment opportunity and 
to follow the rules established. 
 
Requests for reasonable modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with 
the American with Disabilities Act, shall be made as follows: 
 

• By email: to christina.sotelo429@csuci.edu  or 
• By telephone: to 805-437-3281 

 

2

mailto:christina.sotelo429@csuci.edu


SITE AUTHORITY 
FINANCING AUTHORITY 

Regular Meeting Minutes  
Monday, September 9, 2024 

The California State University Channel Islands Site Authority (SA) and The California State 
University Channel Islands Financing Authority (FA) met on Monday, September 9th, 2024, at 
6:00 p.m. In the John Spoor Broome Library, Room 1320, Camarillo St. Camarillo, CA. 

Site Authority Board Chairperson called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. A quorum was 
established. 

Members present:   
John Broome Jr., Chair; City Councilmember Laura Hernandez, Vice Chair; Trustee Larry 
Adamson; Assistant Vice Chancellor Robert Eaton; Supervisor Vianey Lopez; Supervisor Jeff 
Gorell; President Richard Yao 

Regrets: 
Supervisor Kelly Long 

Alternates present:  
City Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo, VP for Business and Financial Affairs Dr. Bradley 
Olin 

Others present: Marc Mootchnik, University Counsel; Stephanie Bracamontes, Controller; John 
Lazarus, Executive Director of Operations; Celina Zacarias, Executive Director of Community & 
Government Relations; Christina Sotelo, Secretary 

OPENING STATEMENTS 

Chairperson John Broome Jr. opened the Financing Authority meeting to run concurrently with 
the Site Authority meeting. 

Chairperson John Broome Jr. called for public comment (pursuant to Government Code Section 
11125.7). 

Public Comment Period 

Sandi Boyd, member of the Homeowners Advisory Council, expressed her concern with the cost 
of owning a home in University Glen. Her concerns include the duplicated costs covered by the 
homeowners' Property Taxes and Mello-Roos Taxes. She stated that the Special Tax could be 
extended until 2051. Her suggestions for implementing the successor agency provisions of the 

Agenda Item #5
Action Item

December 2, 2024

3



repeal legislation for the Redevelopment Law are elaborated in the submitted public comment 
document. 

Mary Kennedy, Chairperson of the Homeowners Advisory Council, suggested allowing public 
comments after the agenda item was discussed. Allowing the public comment to address the 
discussion on the agenda item. She suggested CSU Channel Islands become involved with the 
new initiative called Healthy Camarillo. It was introduced in 2020 by City Council members 
Charlotte Craven and Tony Trembley. Their goal is to create community health and wellness 
programs alongside local health profes-sionals. She expressed her concerns about the 
installation of the water meters. She stated that the installation of water meters would be a 
burden on the community. 

Gabrielle Powell, a member of the Homeowners Advisory Council, expressed her concern for 
the governance restructure. She requested the restructuring of the Budget Advisory Group 
charter and suggested that it adopt the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. This would include an 
agenda sent out ten days in advance. With Budget Advisory Group meeting minutes, the 
community could provide feedback on budgeting decisions. 

A CSU Channel Islands Professor expressed her concerns about the installation of the water 
meters and shifting the maintenance to the homeowners. She stated that homeowners would 
not be able to purchase insurance for the maintenance of the pipes. She asked the board to 
maintain the fiscal health of the University. Her worries include unintended consequences that 
would tarnish the reputation of the University. 

Chairperson John Broome Jr. acknowledged the concerns from the public comments.   

Board Member Comment Period 

Chairperson John Broome Jr. asked if there were any comments. 

a. President Yao acknowledged the retirement of Associate Vice President, Laurie Nichols and 
Associate Vice President for Budget and Planning Barbara Rex. Laurie Nichols was an 
alternate on the Site Authority board. Barbara Rex was the interim Site Authority treasurer.  

b. President Yao welcomed the new Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs, Dr. 
Bradley Olin. 

INFORMATION: Appointment of Bradley Olin as an alternate board member (Broome/Yao) 
 
CSU Chancellor Dr. Mildred García has approved President Yao’s recommendation of the appointment of 
Dr. Bradley Olin, Vice President of Business and Financial Affairs be a designated alternate to the Site 
Authority board. 
 
No further comments were made. 

CONSENT AGENDA  

• ACTION: Approval of Site Authority/Financing Authority Board Minutes of June 10, 2024 
(Sotelo) 

• ACTION ITEM: Approval of Site Authority Audit Subcommittee Entrance Meeting of May 
13, 2024 (Sotelo) 

4



• INFORMATION: Anacapa Canyon Operations Report (Lazarus) 
• INFORMATION: University Glen Operations Report (Lazarus) 
• INFORMATION: CI Power/DWR Update (Olin) 
• INFORMATION: Financial Report (Bracamontes) 
• INFORMATION: Investment Report (Lazarus) 

Approve Consent Agenda  
 
Board member Robert Eaton requested to pull the ACTION: Approval of Site 
Authority/Financing Authority Board Minutes of June 10, 2024. 
Board Member Vianey Lopez requested to pull the INFORMATION: University Glen Operations 
Report. 
 
Motion was made by Larry Adamson to approve the consent agenda except for Action Item: 6 
and Information Item: 8. The motion was seconded by Robert Eaton and carried unanimously 
by roll-call vote. 
 
Mr. Eaton requested to remove wording from the Site Authority /Financing Authority Board 
Minutes of June 10, 2024. The request has been shared with the Site Authority secretary and 
will be removed from the record. 
 
Motion was made by Larry Adamson to approve Action Item: 6 from the consent agenda. The 
motion was seconded by Laura Hernandez and carried unanimously by roll-call vote. 
 
The University Glen Operations Report includes information regarding the budget 
reconciliation. Board member Vianey Lopez requested clarification on the community refund of 
$97,500. John Lazarus explained that the UGCAM budget, passed by the board, is an estimate 
for the total cost of operating goods and services for the community. The Ground Sublease 
stipulates that a reconciliation will take place at the end of the 1st quarter of the fiscal year. The 
reconciliation for the fiscal year 2023-2024 was completed. The reconciliation shows a total 
refund to the community of $97.5k with refunds of $429.95 for SFH, $146.23 for TH, $70.79 for 
Apartments, and $196.54 for both Town Center Apartments and Retail. 
 
Motion was made by Vianey Lopez to approve the Information Item: 8 from the consent 
agenda. The motion was seconded by Larry Adamson and carried unanimously by roll-call vote. 
 
INFORMATION AND ACTION ITEMS  

ACTION: Appointment of Treasurer (Broome) 
 
Resolution 24-01 was read by Chairperson, John Broome Jr. The resolution recommended that 
Dr. Bradley Olin should be appointed to serve as Treasurer of the Site Authority and Financing 
Authority, effective immediately. 
 
Motion was made by Laura Hernandez to approve the Appointment of Treasurer. The motion 
was seconded by Robert Eaton and carried unanimously by roll-call vote. 

5



 
ACTION: Delegate Authority to Sign Documents Related to Easements for EV Charging Station 
Projects 
 
The Delegation of Authority is related to the electric vehicle charging station project. John 
Lazarus explained that with the board’s approval electric vehicle charging stations will be 
installed in two locations on campus. The first location is on CSU Channel Islands land. Southern 
California Edison would pull power from a transformer in the parking lot of Town Center to the 
back side of the Broome Library. The Easement would approve the digging of the power pole 
and the burying underground behind the Broome Library. The second location is currently 
under evaluation and would be on Site Authority land. The charging stations would be in the 
Town Center parking lot. Board member Jeff Gorrell asked if there would be an impact on the 
community. Mr. Lazarus stated that the first site does not impede any future development, and 
the second site adds value to the Broome Library. Board member Larry Adamson asked who is 
covering the cost of the installations. Mr. Lazarus confirmed that the CSUCI campus is paying 
for the first site and Kennedy Wilson will be funding the chargers for the second site. He 
confirmed that this will be of no cost to the Site Authority. Mr. Adamson asked if the charging 
sites would be expandable. Marc Mootchnik explained that Southern California Edison 
identified the number of charging station sites since they are under grants from Southern 
California Edison. Mr. Adamson suggested that the project allow expansion in the future. Board 
member Martita Martinez-Bravo asked if the charging stations would have high-capacity 
charging stations. Mr. Lazarus stated that the plan includes 30 power level 2 charging stations 
that were approved by Southern California Edison. Mr. Adamson referred to the Site Authority 
packet which identified power level 2 to be 120 Volt and 240 Volt charging stations. Mr. 
Mootchnik clarified that the easement is executed by the CSU Trustees. The action item 
represents the Site Authority’s approval of authorizing the use of the Site Authority land.  
 
Motion was made by Larry Adamson to approve the Delegation of Authority. The motion was 
seconded by Robert Eaton and carried unanimously by roll-call vote. 
 
INFORMATION: Annual Review and Update of Delegation of Authority (Yao) 
 
The updated Delegation of Authority included Dr. Bradley Olin and Lisa Woods. Others on the 
Delegation of Authority have stayed consistent. President Yao updated the board on the new 
Delegation of Authority CSU guidelines. 
 
INFORMATION: University Glen Community Update (Lazarus) 
 
The Site Authority is proposing the idea of having CalTrust present to the community every 
Spring. It would be presented in a Town Hall format to allow input from the community. 
CalTrust would also present to the board yearly. This would provide insight into performance, 
anticipated performance, and proposed allocation. The periodic statements from CalTrust will 
be included in the board packet. Which will allow the availability to the community and 
Kennedy Wilson.  
 
The Site Authority has been working with the Homeowners Advisory Council to ensure direct 
communication with the residents. The Site Authority in conjunction with the Homeowners 

6



Advisory Council sent out an email to all the homeowners requesting communication and an 
opt-out option was available.  
 
The Homeowners Advisory Council requested to have the ability to allow subject matter experts 
to serve on the Budget Advisory Group. The current Budget Advisory Group charter only allows 
Homeowners Advisory Council members to serve on the Budget Advisory Group. The 
Homeowners Advisory Council requested monthly financial reports. Seabreeze Management 
has started to provide a monthly balance sheet, income statements, and budget spread reports. 
They are posted on the University Glen website. The Homeowners Advisory Council has started 
to process property improvement applications.  
 
INFORMATION: Campus and Early Childhood Care & Education Center Updates Yao) 
 
The President updated the Board on the following items: 

• CSU Channel Island’s projected enrollment numbers for new student enrollments are up 
by 3%. The projected enrollment numbers for first-year students are down by 6%. The 
projected transfer student headcount is up by 4.8% and 6.3% for full-time equivalent 
students. 54% projected increase in headcount for credential and graduate programs.  

• CSU Channel Islands launched a new Doctorate in Educational Leadership (Ed.D.). This 
program will be the most advanced degree offered at CSUCI and classes are being 
designed so that working professionals can obtain their Ed.D. in three years. 

• CSU Channel Islands is rolling out a new Master of Science (MS) in School Counseling, 
which will qualify graduates to become school counselors, a rewarding career for many 
with undergraduate degrees in fields like education or psychology. 

• CSU Channel Islands modified the pre-nursing category on the application to the Health 
Professions Exploration category. The change negatively impacted the University. This 
change has been corrected moving forward.  

• Ventura County student admissions are up 4% and up 5% in yield. Looking at admissions 
for majors not including health professions are up 11% and 21% in yield. Ventura County 
Community College District admissions are up 6% in admissions and 9% in yield. Los 
Angeles County first-year student applications are down by 3% but up 15% in yield. The 
Summer Session enrollment was up 6% this year. 

• CSU Channel Islands adopted a Customer Relationship Management System (CRM). 
Which is a business strategy that helps companies manage and improve their 
interactions with customers.  

• Scholarships and philanthropic support are being expanded. CSU Channel Islands is 
working on the implementation of a predictive analytics model that will allow tailoring 
of the financial needs. CSU Channel Islands is working to include the financial award 
package with the letter of admission. The goal is to include the financial implications for 
prospective students at the time of receiving the admission letter. 

• CSU Channel Islands started a full-scale digital marketing campaign for the 2025 
recruitment cycle. Focusing on increasing and expanding admissions, increasing brand 
awareness, and converting prospective student interest into applications. Phase 3 has 
begun and consists of rebranding and website design. 

• Welcomed Interim Provost, Jessica Lavariega Monforti and Gina Gibau, Associate Vice 
President for Faculty Affairs, Success and Equity. Welcomed MariaElena Plaza, Associate 

7



Vice President for Human Resources & HRO, and Erica Taylor, Executive Director of Title 
IX & Inclusion / Title IX Coordinator. 

• Money Magazine ranked CSU Channel Islands in the top 15% of the country's top 745 
colleges. CSUCI was also featured in Money's “Best Public Colleges” and “Best Colleges 
in the West”. Washington Monthly Magazine posted CSU Channel Islands 24 out of 200 
in the article, 2023 Best Bang for the Buck.  

ADJOURNMENT  

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:52 p.m.  

APPROVED  

California State University Channel Islands Site Authority Board and California State University 
Channel Islands Financing Authority Board 

 
______________________________ ___________  
Christina Sotelo, Secretary  Date  

8



 
 

 
 

SITE AUTHORITY STANDING AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, September 17, 2024, 11:00 AM Via a Zoom Conference Call 

 
Site Authority Audit Subcommittee Members: Supervisor Laura Hernandez, Supervisor Kelly Long, 
Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo 
Staff Invited: Bradley Olin, Stephanie Bracamontes, John Lazarus, Minna Chang 
Independent Auditors Invited: Nicole Stan with CohnReznick 
 
Chairperson Laura Hernandez called to order at 11:11 AM 

Nicole Stan with CohnReznick shared the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Site Authority. The Site 
Authority was issued a clean opinion. It is the highest level of assurance given with no issues that would 
cause CohnReznick to change their opinion. 

1. Nicole Stan presented the Site Authority Financial Statements for fiscal year 2023-2024. The total 
current assets increased by $1.3 million, due to the $1.1 million sublease rent receivable and the 
$204,000 reimbursement due from the California Department of Water Resources. The 2024 total 
assets increased by $200,000, due to a $1 million decrease in the restricted cash and investments. 
Capital assets net decreased by $2.4 million due to the depreciation recorded during the year.  

2. Total current liabilities decreased by $1.3 million this year compared to last year due to the timing of 
payments coupled with the CI Power penalty, which is no longer here because it was paid. Total 
liabilities decreased by $4.4 million due to the paydown of the infrastructure PPP liability and the 
Broome library debt.  

3. Total operating revenue increased due to the decrease in CI Power energy sales netted against the 
rent increase of Anacapa Canyon. Regarding operating expenses and the cost of energy sales, the 
current year has improved due to the California Department of Water Resources contract.  

Nicole Stan pointed out the Footnotes to the committee and how the cash on hand is considered healthy 
and would last the Site Authority approximately three years. CohnReznick did not find any issues, 
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses with the internal controls related to the financial 
statements. No issues were found with compliance or other related matters. 

The Financing Authority's financial audit has been completed as of June 30th, 2024. The Financing 
Authority report is identical to the Site Authority report. CohnReznick is responsible for conducting an 
audit to perform reasonable, not absolute assurance. CohnReznick is responsible for communicating any 
issues that would be significant. The plan of the scope of the audit was not altered. CohnReznick did not 
become aware of anything that would tailor or alter their procedures. CohnReznick is independent and 
in compliance with the Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence. Regarding the 
audit, there were no significant risks found. CohnReznick found that the qualitative aspects of the audit 
regarding the Financial Statement Disclosure were reasonable. CohnReznick did not identify or suspect 
any fraud and had no significant difficulties. No corrected or uncorrected statements were found during 
the audit. There were no disagreements with management during the audit. There were no other 
circumstances that would impact the audit report. Regarding Management Consultations with Other 

9



Accountants, CohnReznick was not aware of any. CohnReznick was not aware of any significant matter 
finding or issues for either the Site Authority or the Finance Authority.  

Nicole Stan continued by sharing the Financing Authority financial statements. She explained they have 
been extremely consistent year after year. CohnReznick issued a clean opinion on the Financing 
Authority's financial statements. CohnReznick found no additional disclosures that were done in the 
current year, no finding when it comes to internal control, and no significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses.  

Chairperson Laura Hernandez asked about the timing of the Financial Audit Report. Ms. Stan announced 
that CohnReznick is ready to issue the report as soon as the Management Representation letters are 
signed. 

Committee member Martita Martinez-Bravo asked about the $1.3 million decrease in liability. Ms. Stan 
stated that the total current liabilities have decreased by $1.3 million from a combination of the timing 
of payments, and the CI Power $582,000 penalty that was accrued is not there in the current year. 

John Lazarus noted that the Letter of Engagement will be signed by the Site Authority Board Chairperson 
with the approval of the Audit Committee.  

Committee member Martinez-Bravo suggested presenting the budget and financial audit information in 
a visual layout with graphs. She suggested viewing the City of Camarillo’s presentation. 

ACTION ITEM: Request the Audit Committee to approve the opening of the Audit. 

Motion was made by Kelly Long to approve the action item. The motion was seconded by Martita 
Martinez-Bravo and carried unanimously by roll-call vote. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Stephanie Bracamontes stated that the operational audit being done on the Site Authority will be 
disclosed to the financial auditors.  

John Lazarus explained that Item 8, Added Services Beyond the Scope of the Audit, refers to educational 
courses that CohnReznick offers to the Audit Committee to help better understand the audited 
financials.  

Chairperson Hernandez asked about Item 6, the Audit Fee Budget and Actual Results. Mr. Lazarus 
confirmed that it was the same amount as last year's audit. He stated that this is the fourth year of the 
Request for Proposal. A couple of options will be presented to the board. 

Regarding the request to make the financial statements easier to understand, the University is exploring 
using a tool called Questica. Which is an easy-to-use, comprehensive, and collaborative cloud-based 
solution for operating, capital, and salary budget preparation and management. Similar to the OpenGov 
cloud-based government transparency software.   

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:44 AM 

APPROVED 

10



California State University Channel Islands Site Authority Board and California State University Channel 
Islands Financing Authority Board 

 

______________________________ ___________ 

Christina Sotelo, Secretary   Date 

11



 

 

California State University, 
Channel Islands Site Authority 

 
Financial Statements  

(With Supplementary Information) 
and Independent Auditor's Report 

 
June 30, 2024 and 2023 

12



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Index 
 
 

1 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report  2 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 6 

Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position 12 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 14 

Statement of Cash Flows 15 

Notes to Financial Statements 17 

Required Supplementary Information 

GASB Schedule of Net Position 34 

GASB Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 35 

Other Information 36 

Schedule 1 - Supplementary Schedule of Net Position (Deficit) by Program 46 

Schedule 2 - Supplementary Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position (Deficit) by Program 47 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards 48 

13



 

2 

Independent Auditor's Report  

To the Board of Directors  
California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
(the "Site Authority"), a component unit of California State University, Channel Islands as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Site Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the index.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Site Authority as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its financial position and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America ("GAAS") and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Site Authority and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Site Authority's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

14



 

3 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Site Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Site Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 6 to 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

15



 

4 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Site Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information 
on pages 33 to 46 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by an Administrative 
Directive dated June 24, 2003, Financial Reporting Requirements for Auxiliary Organizations, from the 
California State University Office of the Chancellor, and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The accompanying supplementary information on pages 33 to 46 is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information on pages 33 to 46 is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Site Authority's June 30, 2023 financial statements, and we expressed 
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated September 15, 
2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2023 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from 
which it has been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 
17, 2024, on our consideration of the Site Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Site Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Site Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 
 
Los Angeles, California 
September 17, 2024 

16



 

 

Management's Discussion and Analysis

17



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(Unaudited) 
 
 

 
6 

This section of California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority (the "Site Authority") annual 
financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Site Authority for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be 
read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes. 

Introduction to the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements prepared in accordance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statements No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - 
and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, No. 35, Basic Financial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities, No. 37, 
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments: Omnibus, and No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. For reporting 
purposes, the Site Authority is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type 
activities which best represent the activities of the Site Authority. 

The financial statements include the statement of net position; the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position; and the statement of cash flows. These statements are supported by the notes 
to the financial statements and this section. All sections must be considered together to obtain a complete 
understanding of the financial picture of the Site Authority. 

Statement of Net Position 

The statement of net position includes all assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities are reported at their 
book value, on an accrual basis, as of the statement date. It also identifies major categories of restrictions 
on the net position of the Site Authority. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the revenues earned and 
expenses incurred during the year on an accrual basis. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

The statement of cash flows presents the inflows and outflows of cash for the year and is summarized 
by operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities. The statement 
is prepared using the direct method of cash flows and, therefore, presents gross rather than net amounts 
for the year's activities. 

Analytical Overview 

Summary 

The following discussion highlights management's understanding of the key financial aspects of the Site 
Authority's financial activities. Included are an analysis of current year activities and balances, and a 
summary of operations. 

18



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(Unaudited) 
 
 

 
7 

The Site Authority's summary of net position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
Assets:
Current assets 5,748,028$        4,412,574$        1,335,454$        30.3%
Capital assets, net 32,298,683        34,744,601        (2,445,918)         -7.0%
Other noncurrent assets 15,944,776        14,557,827        1,386,949          9.5%

Total assets 53,991,487        53,715,002        276,485             0.5%

Deferred outflows of resources:
Refunding of debt 4,639,775          5,105,625          (465,850)            -9.1%

Total deferred outflows of resources 4,639,775          5,105,625          (465,850)            -9.1%

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 5,716,718          6,996,328          (1,279,610)         -18.3%
Other noncurrent liabilities 78,822,655        83,256,012        (4,433,357)         -5.3%

Total liabilities 84,539,373        90,252,340        (5,712,967)         -6.3%

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets (1,276,259)         (757,738)            (518,521)            68.4%
Restricted for:

Capital projects 6,640,356          6,823,239          (182,883)            -2.7%
Debt service 3,330,000          3,330,000          -                     0.0%
Economic uncertainty 1,448,000          1,448,000          -                     0.0%
Maintenance reserves 4,526,420          3,679,877          846,543             23.0%

Unrestricted (40,576,628)       (45,955,091)       5,378,463          -11.7%

Total net position (25,908,111)$     (31,431,713)$     5,523,602$        -17.6%
 

Assets 

Total assets increased by $276 thousand compared to the prior year. The current asset increased by 
$1.3 million primarily due to sublease rent receivable in the amount of $1.1 million and an increase of 
$204 thousand reimbursement due from the Department of Water Resources ("DWR") as compared to 
the prior year. The capital assets decreased by $2.4 million due to depreciation of the assets. Other 
noncurrent assets are comprised of restricted cash and long-term investments which increased by $1.4 
million primary due to an increase in operating and nonoperating income as well as investment gains.   

 
  

19



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(Unaudited) 
 
 

 
8 

Liabilities 

Total liabilities decreased by $5.7 million compared to the prior year representing a 6% change. The 
decrease in current liabilities by $1.3 million is primarily due to a decrease in accrued expenses by $582 
thousand related to a penalty payment due from CI Powers in the prior year. There was also a decrease 
in the related party payables by $756 thousand due to timely payments made compared to the previous 
year. Noncurrent liabilities decreased by $4.4 million primarily due to the pay down of the infrastructure 
PPP liability by $1.8 million compared to the prior year and the Broome library debt by $2.4 million. 

Net Position  

Total net position increased by $5.5 million due to operating income of $1.5 million and nonoperating 
income of $4.0 million. The net investment in capital assets decreased by $519 thousand due to a 
decrease in the capital assets less lease liability and PPP liability. There is an increase of $847 thousand 
of maintenance reserves which consists of $774 thousand from University Glen CAM and $73 thousand 
from Anacapa CAM. The unrestricted increase of $5.4 million is due to net income received primarily 
from energy sales from CI Power and sublease rent from home sales and apartment rent. 

 

20



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(Unaudited) 
 
 

 
9 

The Site Authority's condensed summary of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, is as follows: 

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
Operating revenues:
Energy sales 2,877,674$        4,357,292$        (1,479,618)$       -34.0%
Maintenance rent 2,841,649          2,506,214          335,435             13.4%
Sublease rent 3,069,228          833,508             2,235,720          268.2%
Other income 59,215               286,791             (227,576)            -79.4%

     Total operating revenues 8,847,766          7,983,805          863,961             10.8%

Operating expenses:
Cost of energy sales 1,713,523          3,758,823          (2,045,300)         -54.4%
Depreciation and amortization 2,443,765          2,449,763          (5,998)                -0.2%
Other operating expenses 3,155,200          3,213,848          (58,648)              -1.8%

     Total operating expenses 7,312,488          9,422,434          (2,109,946)         -22.4%

     Operating income (loss) 1,535,278          (1,438,629)         2,973,907          -206.7%

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest, net (2,086,751)         (2,117,602)         30,851               -1.5%
Taxes 2,536,073          2,183,027          353,046             16.2%
Other  1,013,269          1,159,306          (146,037)            -12.6%
Contributions for debt service 2,525,733          2,519,044          6,689                 0.3%

net 3,988,324          3,743,775          244,549             6.5%

Increase in net position 5,523,602          2,305,146          3,218,456          139.6%

Beginning net position (31,431,713)       (33,736,859)       2,305,146          -6.8%

Ending net position (25,908,111)$     (31,431,713)$     5,523,602$        -17.6%
 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses come from sources that are connected directly to the Site Authority 
business function. Revenue sources are primarily from energy sales, sublease rent, common area 
maintenance revenue and home sales. Expenses include cost of energy sales, depreciation and 
amortization, and other expenses. 

The operating revenues increased by $864 thousand, a 10.8% increase from the prior year. Energy sales 
decreased by $1.5 million but this is offset by a decrease in cost of energy sales by $2.0 million with a 
net increase of $500 thousand in net income for CI Power. This reflects that the transition to the DWR 
contract has been financially beneficial. The decrease in energy sales is offset by an increase in sublease 
rent by $2.2 million. The increase is due to the substantial completion of the Anacapa project resulting in 
the collection of sublease rent for the single-family homes, town homes, age restricted apartments and 
market rate apartments. 

21



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(Unaudited) 
 
 

 
10 

Total operating expenses decreased by $2.1 million, a 22.4% decrease from the prior year. The decrease 
is primarily due to a $2 million reduction in cost of energy sales. In the current year the power plant was 
not required to be run due to the absence of the need for energy. 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Total nonoperating revenues increased $245 thousand, a 6.5% increase from the prior year. The increase 
is primarily due to a $353 thousand increase in net property and sales taxes collected. This is offset by a 
decrease in other nonoperating revenue by $146 thousand. Other nonoperating revenue consists of an 
increase of $308 thousand in investment gains offset by a reduction of $454 thousand in other 
nonoperating revenue/expense. The reduction is primarily related to a CI Power penalty of $1.4 million 
assessed offset with a $2.5 million increase as a result of the implementation of GASB 94 in the prior 
year compared to a CI Power penalty reimbursement of $644 thousand in the current year. 

22



 

 

Basic Financial Statements

23



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2024  

With Summarized Totals at June 30, 2023 
 
 

 
12 

2024 2023

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,574,944$        2,847,117$        
Accounts receivable 2,880,268 1,398,062
Related party receivables 249,145 121,144
Due from CSUCI Financing Authority - restricted 15,429 18,903
Other assets 28,242 27,348               

Total current assets 5,748,028          4,412,574          

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash 4,875,903 11,820,790        
Restricted investments 11,068,873 2,737,037          
Capital assets, net 32,298,683 34,744,601

Total noncurrent assets 48,243,459 49,302,428

Total assets 53,991,487$      53,715,002$      

Deferred outflows of resources
Refunding of debt 4,639,775$        5,105,625$        

Total deferred outflows of resources 4,639,775$        5,105,625$        

Assets

 
 

24



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2024  

With Summarized Totals at June 30, 2023 
 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
13 

2024 2023

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 618,063$           1,213,831$        
Interest payable to CSU
Systemwide Revenue Bond Program 416,185 346,467
Unearned revenue 31,080 21,546
Related party payables 148,221 904,335
CAM reserves held by Kennedy Wilson -                    98,234
Lease obligations, current portion 179,154 170,471             
Obligations under public-public partnerships, current portion 1,904,015 1,841,444
Loans payable - current portion 2,420,000          2,400,000

Total current liabilities 5,716,718          6,996,328          

Noncurrent liabilities
Lease obligations, net of current portion 488,846 668,000             
Obligations under public-public partnerships, net of 
current portion 31,002,927 32,822,424
Unearned revenue, net of current portion 1,080,882 1,095,588          
Loans payable, net of current portion 46,250,000 48,670,000        

Total noncurrent liabilities 78,822,655        83,256,012        

Total liabilities 84,539,373        90,252,340        

Net position (deficit)
Net investment in capital assets (1,276,259)        (757,738)           
Restricted for

Capital projects 6,640,356          6,823,239          
Debt service 3,330,000 3,330,000
Economic uncertainty 1,448,000 1,448,000
Maintenance reserves 4,526,420          3,679,877          

Unrestricted (40,576,628)      (45,955,091)      

Total net deficit (25,908,111)$    (31,431,713)$    

Liabilities and Net Position

 

25



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2024  

With Summarized Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
14 

2024 2023
Operating revenues

Energy sales 2,877,674$        4,357,292$        
Maintenance rent 2,841,649 2,506,214
Sublease rent 3,069,228 833,508
Home sales 46,475 56,379
Miscellaneous revenues 12,740 230,412             

Total operating revenues 8,847,766          7,983,805          

Operating expenses
Cost of energy sales 1,713,523 3,758,823
Depreciation and amortization 2,443,765 2,449,763
General, administrative and other operating costs 3,155,200 3,213,848

Total operating expenses 7,312,488          9,422,434          

Operating income (loss) 1,535,278          (1,438,629)        

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest, net (1,172,827)        (1,099,441)        
Property taxes 2,507,222 1,963,561          
Property tax pass through expense (793,552)           (587,564)           
Contributions for debt service from CSU Chancellor's Office 2,525,733          2,519,044          
Interest on loan payable to CSU Channel Islands (913,924)           (1,018,161)        
Special taxes 822,403 807,030             
Investment gain 362,004 54,166               
Other revenues 651,265             1,105,140          

Total nonoperating revenues, net 3,988,324          3,743,775          

Change in net position 5,523,602          2,305,146          

Net deficit, beginning of year (31,431,713)      (33,736,859)      

Net deficit, end of year (25,908,111)$    (31,431,713)$    
 

 

26



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

With Summarized Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
 

 
15 

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities

Home sales 46,475$             56,379$             
Energy sales 2,666,221          2,973,982          
Sublease rent 1,770,520          833,508             
Miscellaneous revenues (expenses) (120,186)           1,242,152          
Payments to vendors (5,523,317)        (5,765,185)        
Maintenance rent 2,717,622          2,084,124          

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,557,335          1,424,960          

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Property and sales taxes 3,333,099          2,762,986          
Property tax pass through paid (793,552)           (587,564)           

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,539,547          2,175,422          

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Payments on loans payable (245,000)           (235,000)           
Interest paid on loans payable (95,130)             (105,108)           
PPP payment (1,756,926)        (1,781,851)        
PPP interest payments (1,130,355)        (1,108,630)        
Lease payment (170,471)           (178,217)           
Lease interest payments (37,900)             (22,346)             

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (3,435,782)        (3,431,152)        

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments (8,331,836)        -                    
Sale of investments -                    18,400               
Investment income, net 362,004             -                    
Proceeds from insurance 91,672               -                    

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (7,878,160)        18,400               

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,217,060)        187,630             

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,667,907        14,480,277        

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7,450,847$        14,667,907$      

Summary of cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Cash and cash equivalents 2,574,944$        2,847,117$        
Restricted cash 4,875,903          11,820,790        

Total cash and cash equivalents 7,450,847$        14,667,907$      

27



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

With Summarized Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
 

16 

2024 2023  
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided 
by operating activities

Operating income (loss) 1,535,278$        (1,438,629)$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 2,443,765 2,449,763
Other revenue -                    (1,360,095)        
Change in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable (837,525)           (308,735)           
Related party receivables (128,001)           (4,584)               
Other assets (894)                  (7,113)               
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (595,768)           698,746             
Unearned revenue (5,172)               1,111,927          
Reserve held for CAM (98,234)             (340,506)           
Related party payables (756,114)           624,186             

         
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,557,335$        1,424,960$        

Supplemental disclosure of noncash capital and related financing activities
Contribution of debt service payment from CSU Chancellor's 
Office 2,155,000$        2,055,000$        

Contribution of interest payment from CSU Chancellor's Office 836,583$           929,894$           

Amortization of loss on refunding 465,850$           465,850$           

Leases assets acquired in exchange for lease obligations -$                  842,152$           

Loss on disposal of capital asset recorded in nonoperating 
other revenue 6,473$               -$                  

Receivables recorded in nonoperating other revenue 644,681$           

28



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
17 

Note 1 - Organization  

The California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority (the "Site Authority") was formed on 
September 28, 1998 for the purpose of providing a specific reuse plan that will finance and support 
the transition of the property previously known as the Camarillo State Hospital (the "Property") from 
its former use to the California State University campus and other compatible uses. The Site Authority 
is governed by a board of seven members comprising four representatives of the Trustees of the 
California State University and three representatives from the County of Ventura.  

The Property comprises two major sectors: the West Campus and East Campus. The West Campus 
consists of developed space on 42 acres of what was formerly the Camarillo State Hospital. This 
portion of the Campus is centered on academic uses and houses the California State University, 
Channel Islands (the "Campus" or "University"). The East Campus comprises 162 acres of 
developable land, originally expected to contain 900 residential units and approximately 31,000 
square feet of retail commercial uses; however, in July 2017, the Trustees adopted a revised Master 
Plan that increases the density to 1,189 units. To date, 1,167 units are completed and the remaining 
22 are expected to be completed by the end of 2024.  

The Site Authority is an integral part of the California State University, Channel Islands ("CSUCI"), 
and the financial transactions of the Site Authority are also included in the financial statements of the 
CSUCI as a discretely presented component unit.  

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies  

Basis of presentation 
The accompanying financial statements for the Site Authority have been prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
("GASB"). Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  

The financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows. The Site Authority is considered a special-
purpose government under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34. The Site Authority records 
revenue primarily from housing sales, apartment rentals, and tax increment revenues and, 
accordingly, has chosen to present its financial statements using the reporting model for special-
purpose governments. This model allows all financial information for the Site Authority to be reported 
in a single column in each of the financial statements. In accordance with the business-type activities 
reporting model, the Site Authority prepares its statement of cash flows using the direct method.  

Election of applicable FASB statements 
The Site Authority has elected to follow private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting 
issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") prior to November 30, 1989, unless 
those standards conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. The Site Authority also has the 
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance subject to the same limitation. The Site 
Authority has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

29



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
18 

Financial reporting entity 
The financial statements include the accounts of the Site Authority. The Site Authority is a government 
organization under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and is 
also a component unit of the Campus, a public university under the California State University system. 
The Site Authority has chosen to use the reporting model for special-purpose governments that 
engage only in business-type activities. 

Classification of current and noncurrent assets and liabilities 
The Site Authority considers assets to be current that can reasonably be expected, as part of its 
normal business operations, to be converted to cash and be available for liquidation of current 
liabilities within 12 months of the statement of net position date. Liabilities that reasonably can be 
expected, as part of normal business operations, to be liquidated within 12 months of the statement 
of net position date are considered to be current. All other assets and liabilities are considered to be 
noncurrent. 

Net position  
The Site Authority's net position is classified into the following net position categories: 

Net investment in capital assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, amortization, 
and outstanding principal balances of debt and lease liabilities attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted - Net position subject to externally imposed conditions that can be fulfilled by the 
actions of the Site Authority or the passage of time. 

Unrestricted - All other categories of net position. In addition, unrestricted net position may be 
designated for use by the Site Authority. 

The Site Authority has adopted a policy of utilizing restricted funds, when available, prior to 
unrestricted funds. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all highly-liquid debt 
instruments with a maturity of three months or less from date of purchase. The Site Authority 
maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank accounts which, at times, may exceed federally 
insured limits. The Site Authority has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is 
not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash. 

Investments 
Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt 
securities are reported at their fair values in the statement of net position. Unrealized gains and losses 
are included in the change in net position in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position. All investments are restricted.  

Accounts receivable 
Receivables consist of related party receivables and other miscellaneous receivables. The Site 
Authority uses the allowance method of accounting for receivables determined to be potentially 
uncollectable. In management's opinion, all receivables were collectible at year-end and, therefore, 
no allowance has been established.  

30



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
19 

Capital assets  
Capital assets are stated at cost and are capitalized over $5,000, and depreciation is calculated using 
the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the respective assets:  

Infrastructure 40 years
Buildings and building improvements 30 years
Improvements other than buildings 10 years
Equipment 5 years

 
Capital assets are reviewed for impairment when a significant change in the asset's use or another 
indicator of possible impairment is present. No impairment losses were recognized in the financial 
statements in the current period. 

Revenue recognition 
Revenues from home sales are recognized as homes are sold, title passes, and escrow closes. 
Rental revenues are recognized as amounts are earned and coincide with the lease agreement. 
Maintenance rent is recognized monthly upon receipt from homeowners and retail tenants. Tax 
increment revenues are recognized when the taxes are levied and sales tax revenues are recognized 
upon receipt. Energy sales are recognized as energy is provided to customers. 

Classification of revenues and expenses 
The Site Authority considers operating revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position to be those revenues and expenses that result from exchange 
transactions or other activities that are connected directly to the Site Authority's primary functions. 
Exchange transactions include charges for services rendered and the acquisition of goods and 
services. Certain other transactions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion 
and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34. 
These nonoperating activities include the Site Authority's net investment income and interest 
expense, collection of tax increment and sales tax revenues, which are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. Certain other transactions are reported as nonoperating activities and 
primarily include pass-through agency taxes, contribution for debt service, and transfers between the 
Site Authority and the CSUCI Financing Authority and other California State University ("CSU") funds. 

Maintenance reserves 
Maintenance reserve activities are based on the various ground subleases, and retail leases reserve 
payments come from three sources: (1) homeowners, (2) leased units, and (3) retail tenants. Reserve 
contribution amounts are determined after review of the reserve study conducted by an outside firm 
every two to three years. Reserve expenditures consist of maintenance expense and major repairs, 
which extend the life of an asset. Some examples include street repairs, roof replacement, and major 
repairs to the exteriors of townhomes and rental properties. 

Income taxes 
The Site Authority was formed pursuant to Articles 1 - 4, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the 
Government Code of the State of California and, as a governmental entity, is not subject to federal or 
state income taxes. 

31



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
20 

Property taxes 
All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority from the State Constitution and various 
legislative provisions contained in the State Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. 
Property is originally assessed at 100% of full cash or market value at the date of transfer or 
completion of construction pursuant to Article XIII(A) of the California State Constitution and statutory 
provisions by the County Assessor and State Board of Equalization. 

Pursuant to the Community Development Area Specific Reuse Plan adopted June 5, 2000, the Site 
Authority is permitted to collect a maximum of $250,000,000 of tax increment revenues. Tax 
increment revenues are derived from property taxes that result from increases in assessed property 
values. The Site Authority is required to deposit 20% of the tax increment revenues into a Low- and 
Moderate-Income Housing Fund to provide affordable housing for households with moderate and 
low-incomes. The tax increment revenues required to be deposited in the Low- and Moderate-Income 
Housing Fund may be pledged to repay that portion of the capitalized lease obligation to Systemwide 
Revenue Bonds ("SRB") related to infrastructure construction financing, and accordingly, all of the 
tax increment revenues are pledged to repay this portion of the capitalized lease. 

Property taxes are levied on both real and personal property. The County Assessor levies taxes on 
all property developed by the Site Authority, including rental units. Secured property taxes become a 
lien on the property on January 1 or the date on which title to the Property transfers or improvements 
to the Property are completed. Secured property taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable in two 
equal installments; the first payment is generally due on November 1 and delinquent with penalties 
after December 10; the second payment is generally due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties 
after April 10. Tax increment revenues are recognized in the period in which they are levied, net of 
amounts determined to be uncollectible.  

Supplemental property tax assessments/refunds associated with changes in assessed valuations due 
to transfers of title and completed property improvements are levied in two equal installments and 
have variable due dates based on the date of title transfer and/or completion of the Property 
improvements. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Management also determines the accounting principles to be used 
in the preparation of the financial statements.   

Fair value measurements 
The Site Authority reports its fair value measurements using a three-level hierarchy that prioritizes 
the inputs used to measure fair value in accordance with GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction in the principal or most advantageous market at the measurement date under 
current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that 
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs 
may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources 
independent of the reporting entity. 

32



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
21 

Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the 
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best 
information available. GASB 72 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This hierarchy, established by Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles, requires that entities maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the 
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. 

The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows: 

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement 
date for identical assets or liabilities. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority 
to Level 1 inputs.  

Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities; quoted prices in inactive markets; or model-derived valuations in which all 
significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from or corroborated with 
observable market data.  

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available. The fair value 
hierarchy gives the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs. 

When available, the Site Authority measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because they generally 
provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. 

Reclassifications  
Certain amounts in the 2023 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2024 
presentation.  

Note 3 - Liquidity and availability  

The Site Authority regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other 
contractual commitments. The Site Authority has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including 
cash and cash equivalents, receivables and investments. Management continues to regularly monitor 
liquidity and consider all expenditures related to its ongoing activities.  

At June 30, 2024, the Site Authority had the following financial assets and liquidity resources available 
over the next 12 months: 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,574,944$        
Accounts receivable 2,880,268          
Related party receivables 249,145             

5,704,357$        
 

33



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
22 

Note 4 - Cash and cash equivalents  

The Site Authority's cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2024 is classified in the accompanying 
financial statements as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,574,944$        
Restricted cash 4,875,903

7,450,847$        
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
At June 30, 2024, cash and cash equivalents consisted of demand deposits maintained at the bank. 
Total cash and cash equivalents of $7,450,847 had a corresponding carrying value balance with the 
bank of $7,634,253 at June 30, 2024. The difference is related to outstanding checks of $187,813 
and deposits in transit of $4,407.  

Custodial credit risk for deposits 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that the Site Authority will not be able to recover deposits 
or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The 
California Government Code and Education Code do not contain legal or policy requirements that 
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the provision that a financial 
institution must secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in 
an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. This risk is mitigated as 
the Site Authority's deposits are maintained at financial institutions that are fully insured or 
collateralized as required by state law. 

Note 5 - Restricted investments 

The Site Authority holds restricted investments with CalTRUST, which are measured at net asset 
value ("NAV") per share and are not subject to fair value leveling.  

There are no significant restrictions on the ability to redeem investments at the NAV per share. 
Investments in CalTRUST can be redeemed daily without any significant liquidity constraints. As of 
the June 30, 2024, there are no unfunded capital commitments related to the investments in 
CalTRUST. Restricted investments held with CalTRUST as of June 30, 2024 totaled $11,068,873. 

Financial assets valued using Level 1 inputs are based on quoted market prices within active markets 
and are valued on a recurring basis.  At June 30, 2024, the Site Authority did not have any investments 
measured using Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 inputs.  

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Site Authority believes 
its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of 
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments 
could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 

The Site Authority's policy is to recognize transfers in and transfers out as of the actual date of the 
event or change in circumstance that caused the transfer. There were no transfers during the year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

34



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
23 

The composition of the investment return reported in the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position are as follows: 

Interest and dividend income 346,516$           
Realized and unrealized gain on investments 15,488               

Total investment gain 362,004$           
 

Custodial credit risk 
Custodial credit risk for investment deposits is the risk that the Site Authority will not be able to recover 
its deposits in the event of a failure of a depository institution. In the ordinary course of Site Authority's 
operations, deposit balances in checking accounts can exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation ("FDIC") insured limits. In accordance with the Site Authority's investment policy, all 
certificates of deposit are FDIC-insured and limited to $250,000 at any one institution.  

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that if the counterparty to an investment transaction 
were to fail, the Site Authority would not be able to recover its investment. With respect to investments, 
custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial 
credit risk does not apply to indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds and 
government investment pools. U.S. Treasury issues and Federally Sponsored Enterprise issues are 
held by Securities Investor Protection Corporation insured brokers and are not registered with the 
issuer in the Site Authority's name. 

Note 6 - Concentrations of credit risk 

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Site Authority to concentrations of credit risk 
include cash and cash equivalents. The Site Authority maintains its cash and cash equivalents and 
investments with high-credit quality financial institutions. At times, such amounts may exceed 
federally insured limits, which are currently $250,000 per institution. As of June 30, 2024, Site 
Authority's bank deposits exceeded the balance insured by the FDIC by $4,287,347, which are 
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution.  

Note 7 - Due from CSUCI Financing Authority 

The due from CSUCI Financing Authority balance at June 30, 2024 was $15,429 and consists of 
special tax receipts yet to be transferred to the Site Authority to ultimately be used for capitalized 
lease payments. 

35



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
24 

Note 8 - Capital assets 

Capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2024, consists of the following: 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2023 Increases Decreases June 30, 2024

Infrastructure
Right-of-use asset 36,115,839$      -$                  -$                  36,115,839$      
Other 65,891               -                    -                    65,891               
Accumulated depreciation: right-of-use asset (2,257,241)        (2,257,240)        -                    (4,514,481)        
Accumulated depreciation: other (14,000)             (1,645)               -                    (15,645)             

33,910,489        (2,258,885)        -                    31,651,604        

Leased building and building improvements 1,209,428          -                    -                    1,209,428          
Accumulated amortization (379,629)           (184,880)           2,160                 (562,349)           

829,799             (184,880)           2,160                 647,079             

Property and equipment 998,612 -                    (28,734)             969,878             
Accumulated depreciation (994,299)           -                    24,421               (969,878)           

4,313                 -                    (4,313)               -                    

Capital assets, depreciable (net) 34,744,601$      (2,443,765)$      (2,153)$             32,298,683$      
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 was $2,443,765. 

Note 9 - Obligations under Public-Public Partnerships 

Public-Public Partnership 
On March 14, 2007, the CSU Trustees (the "Trustees"), Site Authority, and Financing Authority 
authorized the use of the SRB Program to provide funds to refinance certain of the outstanding 
Financing Authority Bonds.   

In August 2016, the Site Authority entered into an agreement to sell the apartment and town center 
rental facilities. The sale included 328 apartments, 12 retail units, and 58 units in the Town Center, 
and the Site Authority retained the infrastructure, 88 rental town homes, 112 for sale town homes, 
and 72 for the sale of single-family homes. In May 2017, the Site Authority defeased $74,000,000, 
and in October 2017, $13,540,000 in bonds, and refinanced the remaining portion of the infrastructure 
bond. Concurrent with the defeasance and refinancing of the bonds, the Site Authority entered into a 
public-public partnership with the Trustees of the CSU. The amount of $38,938,000 will be repaid 
from revenues received by the Site Authority. Interest ranging from the original 4.00% to 5.45% is 
paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1. The principal payments are paid on November 1 of 
each year beginning November 1, 2017, with the final payment due on November 1, 2037.  

The interest rate is based on the incremental borrowing rate of 3.09%. 

Obligations under public-public partnerships for the year ended June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Balance
June 30, 2023 Additions Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2024

Current 
portion

Obligations under public-public partnerships 34,663,868$      -$                  (1,756,926)$      32,906,942$      1,904,015$        
 

36



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
25 

Annual maturity analysis of the Site Authority's obligations under public-public partnerships as of June 
30, 2024: 

Year ending June 30,

2025 2,892,980$        
2026 2,893,480          
2027 2,894,855          
2028 2,891,981          
2029 2,894,606          

2030-2034 14,462,317        
2035-2038 11,571,049        

Total obligations under public-public 
partnerships payments 40,501,268        

Less interest (7,594,326)        

Present value of future minimum obligations 
under public-public partnerships payments 32,906,942$      

 
Public-Private Partnerships 
 
Ground Sublease-East Campus University Glen: 328 Apartments and Town Center: 58 
Apartments and Ground Floor Retail 
On August 2016, CSU CI Site Authority ("Site Authority") entered into a ground sublease agreement 
with KW University Glen LLC ("KW") in which the KW improved the Property by constructing 328 
multifamily apartment buildings (University Glen) and another 58 multifamily apartment units and 
ground floor retail units (Town Center). The term of the agreement is from August 2016 to June 30, 
2098. KW shall pay Percentage Rent, which is seven percent of the effective gross income received.   

The rights retained by the Site Authority includes the right to select the tenants and the rental rate for 
100 Sublease Units. In addition, tenants are to be selected in accordance with the Priority System 
set out by the Site Authority. KW agrees to invest an amount of not less than $2,296,000 ($7,000 per 
University Glen Units) in upgrades to the interiors of the Units at the Property. All Improvement on 
the Property shall, during the Term, be and remain the property of KW and the Site Authority shall 
not have title. At the end of the Term, all Improvements which constitute or are a part of the Property 
shall become without payment or any compensation to KW, the Property of the Site Authority. 

Ground Sublease Phase II Master Sublease 
In September 2021, Site Authority entered into a Phase II Master Sublease agreement with KW 
Camarillo Land, LLC ("KW Camarillo") for development of 32 acres including building infrastructure 
to support age/income restricted housing, multifamily housing, and single-family housing. As the 
infrastructure supporting the individual residential development types are completed and other 
conditions are met, the portion of the Property related to that phase of residential development will 
be released from the Master Ground Sublease and a longer-term ground sublease specific to that 
phase of residential development will be entered into. As of June 30, 2024, all residential 
developments have been released from the Master Ground Sublease with the longer-term ground 
sublease for each residential development in force. The phase ground subleases for each of the 
residential development type, age/income restricted housing, multifamily housing, and single-family 
housing, were negotiated up front.   

37



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
26 

The Master Ground Sublease term is two years with two possible one-year extensions upon the 
payment of $500,000 per extension, which are either refundable to KW Camarillo upon completion of 
the infrastructure improvement or retained by the Site Authority if the Master Ground Sublease 
expires without completion of all the infrastructure improvements. The Site Authority received 
$250,000 in advanced rent on execution of the Master Ground Sublease. 

Sublease for Age Restricted 
On September 3, 2021, the Site Authority entered into a Ground Sublease agreement with Vintage 
at University Glen, LP ("Vintage"). The term of the agreement is through June 30, 2098. The Sublease 
requires development of 170 rental units with all but two units restricted based on age qualification of 
55 years or older. Household income of residents of the Property are required to be below 60% of the 
area median income. 

The Age Restricted Sublease commenced when the Memorandum of Ground Lease (Age Restricted 
Apartment) was recorded with Ventura County. This took place on May 18, 2022. Vintage will have 
an initial four years, plus two optional one-year extension upon payment of $200,000 per extension, 
to complete the construction of the age restricted housing. Extension payments are refundable upon 
completion of the age restricted housing. As if June 30, 2024, 170 units have been completed. 

The Site Authority received $1,125,000 advanced rent on commencement of the Age Restricted 
Sublease. This is being amortized over the life of the lease term. The Site Authority will also receive 
seven percent of the effective gross income received from the age restricted housing project through 
the term of the sublease. As of June 30, 2024, the Site Authority has recorded $39,877 in rent. 

Sublease for Multifamily Apartments 
On August 25, 2022, a Memorandum of Ground Lease (Multifamily Apartments) was executed 
between the Site Authority and UG2 MR, LLC ("UG2"). The term of the Lease is through June 30, 
2098. The agreement restricts UG2's right to encumber, assign or transfer the Site Authority's 
leasehold interest in the Multifamily Housing Property. The Lease further provides the Site Authority 
with a Right of First Offer regarding assignments of Lease. 

The Sublease requires the development of 310 Market Rate Multifamily Apartments in which the 
construction must be complete in four years plus two optional one-year extension upon payment of 
$200,000 per extension. Extension payments are refundable upon completion of the housing project. 
As of June 30, 2024, 100 units are rented. 

The Site Authority received $1,125,000 in advanced rent with the execution of the first Market Rate 
Multifamily Sublease. The Site Authority will also receive seven percent of the effective gross income 
received from all market rate apartments through the term of the sublease. As of June 30, 2024, the 
Site Authority has recorded $44,322 in rent not including the advance rent. 

Sublease for Single Family/Townhouse Agreements 
On December 28, 2022, the Site Authority executed a Memorandum of Ground Lease (Single Family 
Housing Property-Phase One) with University Glen-Camarillo, LP ("University Glen"). The Tenant will 
construct 109 single-family homes, which is comprised of 64 townhouses and 45 single family 
detached houses. A joint venture between University Glen, Comstock Homes and Hearthstone will 
be the assigned entity to enter into these subleases.   

38



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
27 

The term of the development sublease will be four years, plus two optional one-year extensions upon 
payment of $2,000 per lot per extension to complete construction of the unit. Extension payments are 
refundable upon completion of each applicable single-family unit. The term of the homebuyer 
subleases will be through June 30, 2098. 

The Site Authority will receive a total of $25,000 per lot on the initial sale of each single-family home.  
$1,000 per lot will be paid to the Site Authority when each developer sublease commences. The 
remaining $24,000 per lot will be paid to the Site Authority through escrow at closing of the homebuyer 
sublease. The fee will constitute a complete prepayment of the ground sublease rent to the Site 
Authority. No further ground lease rent will be payable to the Site Authority under the homebuyer's 
sublease with the Site Authority other than rents for the Site Authority's maintenance and service 
obligations. As of June 30, 2024, the Site Authority recorded $87,000 for 87 completed lots, and 
$936,000 for 39 homes sold.  

Note 10 - Leases 

Electricity Supply Strategic Reserve - Capacity and Energy Purchase Agreement 
The site and facility were leased from the Board of Trustees of the California State University to the 
Site Authority. The lease is expected to be continuously renewed through December 31, 2027, as the 
site is necessary for the Site Authority to meet the requirements under the Electricity Supply Strategic 
Reserve - Capacity and Energy Purchase ("ESSR") agreement with the California Department of 
Water Resources ("DWR"). The site rent is increased annually by the Consumer Price Index ("CPI") 
for all Urban Consumers ("CPI-U"), published by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics from 
the immediately preceding calendar year, calculated on October 31 or any replacement index 
reasonably agreed to by the parties if such index is no longer available. The interest rate is based on 
the incremental borrowing rate of 4.98%. 

Lease activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows: 

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024 portion

Lease obligations 838,471$           -$                   (170,471)$          668,000$           179,154$           
 

Annual maturity analysis of the Site Authority's leases as of June 30, 2024: 

Year ending June 30,

2025 208,368$           
2026 208,368             
2027 208,368             
2028 104,184             

Total lease payments 729,288             
Less interest (61,288)             

Present value of future minimum lease 
payments 668,000$           

 

39



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
28 

Note 11 - Deferred outflows of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) 
and thus, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Site 
Authority has only one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on 
refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding 
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This 
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 

Note 12 - Partial bond refunding 

Bonds are refunded to retire all or a portion of an outstanding bond issue. Most typically, refundings 
are done to refinance at a lower interest rate to reduce overall debt service. Certain issues of bonds 
may be refunded prior to the call date, known as an advance refunding. 

On April 1, 2005, the Site Authority, entered into an agreement with the Campus to pay the Campus' 
debt service on revenue bonds issued to build and renovate certain Campus buildings. The original 
loan amount was $61,945,000 and has since been refinanced in 2013 and 2014 to $57,290,000. It 
was refinanced again in 2021. Interest ranging from 0.50% to 3.00% is paid semiannually on May 1 
and November 1. The principal payments are paid on November 1 of each year beginning November 
1, 2021, with the final payment due November 1, 2038. 

In July 2021, on behalf of Site Authority, the Trustees of California State University issued 
Systemwide Revenue Bond, Series 2021B. These bonds are labeled internally in Site Authority as 
SRB 21B - Refunding of Channel Islands Information Resource Center and SRB 21B - Refunding of 
Channel Islands BAN. These bonds reduced the present value of future debt service payments. The 
savings were available due to improved lower interest rates during the year.  

The effect of the refunding is summarized as follows: 

Title and series
Closing date July 29, 2021
Net interest rate 2.03%
Refunding bonds issued 49,235,000$      
Premium -                    
Issuance costs and insurance (159,684)           

Net proceeds 49,075,316$      

Economic gain on refunding 11,469,341$      
Number of years affected 16                      

 Systemwide Revenue 
Bond, Series 2021B 

 
The difference between the cash flows required to service the old debt and that required to service 
the new debt and complete the refunding was $4,779,341. 

40



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
29 

Deferred and amortized amounts on the Site Authority's bond refunding are reported as deferred 
outflows of resources at June 30, 2024. The total deferred outflow of resources generated from the 
refunding of debt on July 29, 2021 was $5,998,504, which is made up of increases in principal of 
$6,690,000 and decreases in interest charges of $691,496. Site Authority recorded amortization of 
total deferred outflows of resources for $465,850 for the year ended June 30, 2024. The balance of 
deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2024 is $4,639,775. 

Note 13 - Loans payable 

Loans payable for the year ended June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

 Interest
rate 

Fiscal year 
maturity date

Original issue 
amount

Amount 
outstanding

June 30, 2024

California State University,
SRB 21B - Refunding of Channel 
Islands BAN

0.50% - 3.00% 2038 5,050,000$        4,990,000$        

SRB 21B - Refunding of Channel 
Islands Information Resource 
Center 

0.50% - 3.00% 2038 44,185,000        43,680,000        

Series 2013A - Channel Islands 
BAN

5% 2024 615,000             -                    

Series 2013A - Channel Islands 
Information Resource Center

5% 2024 5,425,000          -                    

55,275,000$      48,670,000$      
 

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows: 

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions June 30, 2024 portion

Loans
CSU Channel Islands 51,070,000$      -$                  (2,400,000)$      48,670,000$      2,420,000$        

 
The loans mature as follows, as of June 30, 2024: 

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest

2025 2,420,000$        871,886$           
2026 3,335,000          850,699             
2027 3,375,000          817,054             
2028 3,275,000          775,497             
2029 3,325,000          727,924             

2030-2034 17,510,000        2,735,880          
2034-2038 15,430,000        767,689             

48,670,000$      7,546,629$        
 

41



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
30 

Note 14 - Disclosure related to debt 

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements, requires certain disclosures regarding the amount of unused lines of credit, assets 
pledged as collateral for debt and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant (1) events 
of default with finance-related consequences, (2) termination events with finance-related 
consequences, and (3) subjective acceleration clauses.  

The Site Authority's future annual loan payments of the Broome Library will be funded and paid by 
the Chancellor's Office and defaults of finance-related consequences are held to the Chancellor's 
Office. Since the loan is not directly funded, GASB Statement No. 88 does not apply to the Site 
Authority. 

Note 15 - Commitments 

The Site Authority entered into a Tenant Placement agreement with Kennedy Wilson Properties, LTD. 
for 100 of the 328 apartments sold in August of 2016. These apartments are exclusively used by 
CSUCI faculty and staff and are typically 5% below market rental rates. The Site Authority agreed to 
pay for the subsidy through proceeds from the annual Ground Sublease Payment. Total rental 
expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 amounted to $304,070. The Ground Sublease generated 
$847,322 in income, which nets to a surplus of $543,252. 

Note 16 - Net position 

The Site Authority has a total net deficit of $25,908,111 as of June 30, 2024. The net deficit in net 
position is due to an agreement in 2005 where the Site Authority agreed to pay the Campus' debt 
service on certain revenue bonds to renovate certain Campus buildings, but the ownership of the said 
assets was not transferred to the Site Authority. The amount outstanding on the loan payable to the 
Campus as of June 30, 2024 is $48,670,000, resulting in the net deficit. This is documented in 
correspondence from the Chancellor's Office to the CSUCI President dated October 18, 2016 
regarding Debt Service Payments for the CSUCI Broome Library. The intent of the agreement is that 
the Chancellor's Office was to cover any debt service payments for the CSUCI Broome Library. 
Further, on April 12, 2018, the Site Authority leased the Campus' cogeneration plant on a stand-by 
mode operation and signed a new energy service agreement with the Campus, entitling the Site 
Authority to the net revenues of the cogeneration plant primarily to assist the Campus. As a result, 
there is not a significant risk of the Site Authority's ability to continue as a going concern.  

Note 17 - Related party transactions 

The Site Authority receives its financing and contributions from the CSU Trustees, and the Site 
Authority has also entered into certain transactions with the Campus and recognized auxiliary 
organizations of the Campus relating to infrastructure, residential, commercial developments, and 
personnel cost reimbursement. The accompanying financial statements include the transactions with 
the CSU Trustees, the Site Authority, the Campus and a recognized auxiliary organization of the 
Campus as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024.  

42



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
31 

As of June 30, 2024, total related party receivable consists of the following: 

California State University Channel Islands 249,145$           

Total related party receivables 249,145$           
 

As of June 30, 2024, total related party payables consist of the following: 

CI University Auxiliary Services, Inc. 399$                  
California State University Channel Islands 147,822             

Total related party payables 148,221$           
 

The accompanying financial statements also include the following transactions with the University 
and other related parties as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024: 

Payments received from University 1,633,930$        
Payments made to University 4,763,234          
Payments made to CI University Auxiliary Services, Inc. 1,140                 

 
Note 18 - Maintenance rent 

The CSUCI Site Authority contracts with Kennedy-Wilson Properties, LTD to manage the common 
area for homeowners, renters, and the Town Center tenants. Common area charges include all costs 
and expenses incurred by the CSUCI Site Authority in the operation, maintenance, replacement, and 
repair of the common areas during the term of the sublease. Common area expenses are allocated 
among all units based on type, such as single-family residences, townhomes, rental property, or retail 
space. Maintenance rent for the year ended June 30, 2024 was $2,841,649. 

Note 19 - Energy sales 

In April 2018, the Site Authority subleased the Campus' cogeneration plant and entered into an energy 
services agreement with the Campus to operate a RMR operation through December 31, 2022. The 
Site Authority makes an annual payment of $1 to the Campus to sublease the cogeneration plant. 
Under the terms of the agreement, the Site Authority is the operator of the plant, which includes being 
responsible for the costs of the plant's operations as well as entitling the Site Authority to the plant's 
net earnings. Revenue is recognized as energy is provided to the plant's customers, which primarily 
consist of Southern California Edison and the Campus.  

On January 1, 2023, the Site Authority subleased the Campus's cogeneration plant to operate as an 
ESSR asset for DWR through December 31, 2027. Under the terms of the agreement, the Site 
Authority is the operator of the plant, which includes being responsible for the costs of the plant's 
operations as well as entitling the Site Authority to the plant's net earnings. The revenue recognized 
is the Performance Based Availability Charge ("PBAC") paid to the Site Authority from DWR for 
ownership of the plant's electricity capacity. The PBAC is paid monthly and based on the plant's 
availability, weighted for seasonality, with summer months having a higher payment value. The Site 
Authority will also receive revenue from the CAISO Settlements Market when the plant is dispatched.  
However, any Market Settlement Revenue is owned by DWR and will be passed through when 
payments are received from California Independent System Operator ("CAISO"). All costs to operate 

43



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

 
32 

the plant under the approved budget are reimbursable by DWR. Costs in excess of the approved 
budget require DWR approval. Total energy sales for the year ended June 30, 2024 are $2,877,674. 

Note 20 - Contingencies 

From time to time, the Site Authority may have claims against it arising from its normal operations. 
Currently, there are no claims or litigation against the Site Authority. 

44



 

 

Supplementary Information 

45



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

GASB Schedule of Net Position 
June 30, 2024 

(for Inclusion in the California State University) 
 
 

34 

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $              2,574,944 
Short-term investments                              -   
Accounts receivable, net                  3,144,842 
Lease receivable, current portion                              -   
P3 receivable, current portion                              -   
Notes receivable, current portion                              -   
Pledges receivable, net                              -   
Prepaid expenses and other current assets                       28,242 

Total current assets                  5,748,028 

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents                  4,875,903 
Accounts receivable, net                              -   
Lease receivable, net of current portion                              -   
P3 receivable, net of current portion                              -   
Notes receivable, net of current portion                              -   
Student loans receivable, net                              -   
Pledges receivable, net                              -   
Endowment investments                              -   
Other long-term investments                11,068,873 
Capital assets, net                32,298,683 
Other assets                              -   

Total noncurrent assets                48,243,459 

Total assets                53,991,487 

Deferred outflows of resources:

Unamortized loss on debt refunding                  4,639,775 
Net pension liability                              -   
Net OPEB liability                              -   
Leases                              -   
P3                              -   
Others                              -   

Total deferred outflows of resources                  4,639,775 

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable                     607,494 
Accrued salaries and benefits                              -   
Accrued compensated absences, current portion                              -   
Unearned revenues                       31,080 
Lease liabilities, current portion                  2,083,169 
SBITA liabilities - current portion                              -   
P3 liabilities - current portion                              -   
Long-term debt obligations, current portion                  2,420,000 y j
portion                              -   
Depository accounts                              -   
Other liabilities                     574,975 

Total current liabilities                  5,716,718 

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion                              -   
Unearned revenues                  1,080,882 
Grants refundable                              -   
Lease liabilities, net of current portion                31,491,773 
SBITA liabilities, net of current portion                              -   
P3 liabilities, net of current portion                              -   
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion                46,250,000 y j
current portion                              -   
Depository accounts                              -   
Net other postemployment benefits liability                              -   
Net pension liability                              -   
Other liabilities                              -   

Total noncurrent liabilities                78,822,655 

Total liabilities                84,539,373 

Deferred inflows of resources:

P3 service concession arrangements                              -   
Net pension liability                              -   
Net OPEB liability                              -   
Unamortized gain on debt refunding                              -   
Nonexchange transactions                              -   
Lease                              -   
P3                              -   
Others                              -   

Total deferred inflows of resources                              -   

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets                (1,276,259)
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable – endowments                              -   
Expendable:

Scholarships and fellowships                              -   
Research                              -   
Loans                              -   
Capital projects                11,166,776 
Debt service                  3,330,000 
Others                  1,448,000 

Unrestricted              (40,576,628)

Total net position  $          (25,908,111)  46



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

GASB Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

(for Inclusion in the California State University) 
 
 

35 

Revenues:
Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees, gross  $                        -   
Scholarship allowances (enter as negative)                            -   

Grants and contracts, noncapital:

Federal                            -   
State                            -   
Local                            -   
Nongovernmental                            -   

Sales and services of educational activities                            -   
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross                            -   

Scholarship allowances (enter as negative)                            -   
Other operating revenues               8,847,766 

Total operating revenues               8,847,766 

Expenses:
Operating expenses:

Instruction                            -   
Research                            -   
Public service               3,155,200 
Academic support                            -   
Student services                            -   
Institutional support                            -   
Operation and maintenance of plant               1,713,523 
Student grants and scholarships                            -   
Auxiliary enterprise expenses                            -   
Depreciation and amortization               2,443,765 

Total operating expenses               7,312,488 

Operating income (loss)               1,535,278 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

State appropriations, noncapital                            -   
Federal financial aid grants, noncapital                            -   
State financial aid grants, noncapital                            -   
Local financial aid grants, noncapital                            -   
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital                            -   
Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital                            -   
Gifts, noncapital                            -   
Investment income (loss), net                  362,004 
Endowment income (loss), net                            -   
Interest expense             (2,086,751)
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)               5,713,071 

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)               3,988,324 

Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses)               5,523,602 

State appropriations, capital                            -   
Grants and gifts, capital                            -   
Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments                            -   

Increase (decrease) in net position               5,523,602 

Net position:

Net position at beginning of year           (31,431,713)

Net position at end of year  $       (25,908,111)

 
47



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

36 

1 Cash and cash equivalents:
Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to 
endowments  $                                 -   

All other restricted cash and cash equivalents                        4,875,903 
Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents                        4,875,903 
Current cash and cash equivalents                        2,574,944 
Total  $                    7,450,847 

 

48



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

37 

2.1 Composition of investments:
Investment Type Current Noncurrent Total

Money market funds  $                                 -    $                                     -                                          - 
Repurchase agreements                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Certificates of deposit                                     -                                           -                                          - 
U.S. agency securities                                     -                                           -                                          - 
U.S. treasury securities                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Municipal bonds                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Corporate bonds                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Asset-backed securities                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Mortgage-backed securities                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Commercial paper                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Supranational                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Mutual funds                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Exchange-traded funds                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Equity securities                                        - 
Alternative investments:                                     -                                           -   

Private equity (including limited partnerships)                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Hedge funds                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Managed futures                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Real estate investments (including REITs)                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Commodities                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Derivatives                                     -                                           -                                          - 
Other alternative investments                                     -                                           -                                          - 

Other external investment pools                                     -                                           -                                          - 
CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT)                                     -                                           -                                          - 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)                                     -                                           -                                          - 

State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF)                                     -                                           -                                          - 

Other investments:
CalTRUST Short-Term Fund  $                                 -    $                        3,730,655  $                     3,730,655 
CalTRUST Medium-Term Fund                                     -                              7,338,218                         7,338,218 

                                       - 
                                       - 
                                       - 

Total other investments                                       -                          11,068,873                       11,068,873 
Total investments                                       -                          11,068,873                       11,068,873 

Less endowment investments (enter as negative number)                                           -                                        - 

Total investments, net of endowments  $                                 -                            11,068,873                       11,068,873 
 

49



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

38 

2.2 Fair value hierarchy in investments:

Investment Type Total
Quoted Prices in Active 

Markets for Identical 
Assets (Level 1)

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable Inputs 

(Level 3)

Net Asset Value 
(NAV)

Money market funds -$                                -$                                    -$                                 -$                              -$                          
Repurchase agreements -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Certificates of deposit -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
U.S. agency securities -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
U.S. treasury securities -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Municipal bonds -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Corporate bonds -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Asset-backed securities -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Mortgage-backed securities -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Commercial paper -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Supranational -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Mutual funds -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Exchange-traded funds -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Equity securities -                                  
Alternative investments: -                                      -                                   -                                -                            

Private equity (including limited partnerships) -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Hedge funds -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Managed futures -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Real estate investments (including REITs) -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Commodities -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Derivatives -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
Other alternative investments -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            

Other external investment pools -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
CSU Consolidated Investment Pool (formerly SWIFT) -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) -                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
State of California Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF) -                                  
Other investments:

CalTRUST Short-Term Fund 3,730,655$                     -$                                    -$                                 -$                              3,730,655$               
CalTRUST Medium-Term Fund 7,338,218                       -                                      -                                   -                                7,338,218                 

-                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
-                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            
-                                  -                                      -                                   -                                -                            

Total other investments 11,068,873                     -                                      -                                   -                                11,068,873               
Total investments 11,068,873$                   -                                      -                                   -                                11,068,873                

2.3 Investments held by the University under contractual agreements: Not applicable  

50



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

39 

3.1 Capital Assets, excluding ROU assets: 

Composition of capital assets, excluding ROU assets: Balance
June 30, 2023 Reclassifications Prior Period Additions

Prior Period 
Retirements

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Retirements
Transfer of completed 

CWIP/PWIP
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable capital assets:
Land and land improvements -$                               -$                                   -$                                 -$                              -$                         -$                                -$                             -$                        
Works of art and historical treasures -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
Construction work in progress (CWIP) -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Intangible assets:
Rights and easements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
Patents, copyrights and trademarks -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
Intangible assets in progress (PWIP) -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Licenses and permits -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          

Other intangible assets:
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               

Total Other intangible assets -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Total intangible assets -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable capital assets
-$                               -$                                   -$                                 -$                              -$                         -$                                -$                             -$                              -$                        

Depreciable/Amortizable capital assets:
Buildings and building improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Improvements, other than buildings -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Infrastructure -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Leasehold improvements 65,891                            -                                     -                                   -                                65,891                     -                                  -                               -                                65,891                    
Personal property:

Equipment 998,612                          -                                     -                                   -                                998,612                   -                                  (28,734)                        -                                969,878                  
Library books and materials -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Intangible assets:
Software and websites -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Rights and easements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Patents, copyrights and trademarks -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Licenses and permits -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Other intangible assets:

-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Total Other intangible assets: -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Total intangible assets -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Total depreciable/amortizable capital assets 1,064,503                       -                                     -                                   -                                1,064,503                -                                  (28,734)                        -                                1,035,769               
Total capital assets  $                    1,064,503                                         -                                        -                                     -    $              1,064,503                                     -                           (28,734)                                   -                  1,035,769 

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization: 
Buildings and building improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
Improvements, other than buildings -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          
Infrastructure -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                          
Leasehold improvements (14,000)                          (14,000)                    (1,645)                             -                               (15,645)                   
Personal property:

Equipment (994,299)                        -                                     -                                   -                                (994,299)                  -                                  24,421                         (969,878)                 
Library books and materials -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                          

Intangible assets:
Software and websites -                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                

Rights and easements -                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                

Patents, copyrights and trademarks -                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                

Licenses and permits -                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                

Other intangible assets:
-                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                
-                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                
-                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                
-                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                
-                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                

Total Other intangible assets: -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Total intangible assets -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization (1,008,299)                     -                                     -                                   -                                (1,008,299)               (1,645)                             24,421                         -                                (985,523)                 

Total capital assets, net excluding ROU assets
56,204$                          -                                     -                                   -                                56,204$                   (1,645)                             (4,313)                          -                                50,246                     

51



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

40 

Composition of capital assets - Lease ROU, net: Balance
June 30, 2023

Prior Period 
Reclassifications Prior Period Additions

Prior Period 
Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Remeasurements Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable lease assets:
Land and land improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable lease assets
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Depreciable/Amortizable lease assets:
Land and land improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Buildings and building improvements 1,209,428                       -                                     -                                   -                                1,209,428                -                                  -                               -                                1,209,428               
Improvements, other than buildings 38,373,078                     -                                     -                                   -                                38,373,078              -                                  -                               38,373,078             
Infrastructure -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Personal property: -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Equipment -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Total depreciable/amortizable lease assets 39,582,506                     -                                     -                                   -                                39,582,506              -                                  -                               -                                39,582,506             

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization: 
Land and land improvements -                           -                          
Buildings and building improvements (379,629)                        -                                     -                                   -                                (379,629)                  (184,880)                         2,160                           -                                (562,349)                 
Improvements, other than buildings (4,514,480)                     -                                     -                                   -                                (4,514,480)               (2,257,240)                      -                               (6,771,720)              
Infrastructure -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                               -                                -                          
Personal property:

Equipment -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                               -                                -                          
Total accumulated depreciation/amortization (4,894,109)                     -                                     -                                   -                                (4,894,109)               (2,442,120)                      2,160                           -                                (7,334,069)              

Total capital assets - lease ROU, net 34,688,397                     -                                     -                                   -                                34,688,397              (2,442,120)                      2,160                           -                                32,248,437$           

Composition of capital assets - SBITA ROU, net Balance
June 30, 2023 Reclassifications Prior Period Additions

Prior Period 
Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Remeasurements Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024

Depreciable/Amortizable SBITA assets:
Software                                     -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -                               -   

Total depreciable/amortizable SBITA assets                                     -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -                               -   

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:
Software                                     -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -                               -   

Total accumulated depreciation/amortization                                       -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -                               - 

Total capital assets - SBITA ROU, net                                       -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -                               -  

52



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

41 

Composition of capital assets - P3 ROU, net: Balance
June 30, 2023 Reclassifications Prior Period Additions

Prior Period 
Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Remeasurements Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024

Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable P3 assets:
Land and land improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Total non-depreciable/non-amortizable P3 assets
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Depreciable/Amortizable P3 assets:
Land and land improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Buildings and building improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Improvements, other than buildings -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Infrastructure -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Personal property:

Equipment -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Total depreciable/amortizable P3 assets -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization:
Land and land improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Buildings and building improvements -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Improvements, other than buildings -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Infrastructure -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Personal property:

Equipment -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Total accumulated depreciation/amortization -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Total capital assets - P3 ROU, net -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -$                        

Total capital assets, net including ROU assets
32,298,683$           

3.2 Detail of depreciation and amortization expense:
Depreciation and amortization expense - capital assets, 
excluding ROU assets 1,645$                            
Amortization expense - Leases ROU 2,442,120                       
Amortization expense - SBITA ROU -                                 
Amortization expense - P3 ROU -                                 
Depreciation and Amortization expense - Others

Total depreciation and amortization 2,443,765$                     

53



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

42 

4 Long-term liabilities:

Balance
June 30, 2023

Prior Period 
Adjustments/Reclassifica

tions

Balance
June 30, 2023 

(Restated) Additions Reductions
Balance

June 30, 2024 Current Portion Noncurrent Portion

1. Accrued compensated absences -$                                        -$                                             -$                                         -$                                      -$                                -$                                              -$                                     -$                                      

2. Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment 
expenses -                                          -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                  -                                                -                                       -                                        

3. Capital lease obligations (pre-ASC 842):
Gross balance -                                 -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                       -                                          -                                       -                                
Unamortized net premium/(discount) -                                 -                                               -                                           -                                        -                                       -                                          -                                       -                                

Total capital lease obligations (pre ASC 842) -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                

4. Long-term debt obligations:
4.1 Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related) -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                
4.2 Commercial paper -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                
4.3 Notes payable (SRB related) -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                
4.4 Finance purchase of capital assets -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                
4.5 Others: -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               

Debt services on revenue bond 51,070,000                     -                                     51,070,000                      -                                (2,400,000)               48,670,000                     2,420,000                    46,250,000                   
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                
-                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                

Total others 51,070,000                     -                                     51,070,000                      -                                (2,400,000)               48,670,000                     2,420,000                    46,250,000                   
Sub-total long-term debt 51,070,000                     -                                     51,070,000                      -                                (2,400,000)               48,670,000                     2,420,000                    46,250,000                   

4.6 Unamortized net bond premium/(discount) -                                 -                                   -                                  -                               -                                
Total long-term debt obligations  $                  51,070,000                                           -                       51,070,000                                     -                (2,400,000)  $                  48,670,000                      2,420,000                     46,250,000 

5. Lease, SBITA, P3 liabilities:  Balance
June 30, 2023 

Prior Period 
Adjustments/Reclassifica

tions  Additions  Remeasurements  Reductions 
 Balance

June 30, 2024  Current Portion  Noncurrent Portion 

Lease liabilities                      35,502,339                                         -                                        -                                     -                  (1,927,397)                      33,574,942                      2,083,169                     31,491,773 
SBITA liabilities                                     -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -   
P3 liabilities - SCA                                     -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -   
P3 liabilities - non-SCA                                     -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -   

Sub-total P3 liabilities                                     -                                           -                                        -                                     -                                -                                       -                                    -                                     -   
Total Lease, SBITA, P3 liabilities  $                  35,502,339  $                                     -                                        -                                     -                  (1,927,397)                      33,574,942                      2,083,169                     31,491,773 

Total long-term liabilities  $                  82,244,942                      4,503,169                     77,741,773  
 

54



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

43 

5 Future minimum payments schedule - leases, SBITA, P3:

Principal Interest Principal and Interest Principal Interest Principal and Interest Principal Interest
Principal and 

Interest Principal Only Interest Only
Principal and 

Interest

Year ending June 30:
2025 2,083,169$                     1,018,179$                         3,101,348$                      -$                              -$                         -$                                -$                             -$                              -$                        2,083,169$           1,018,179$     3,101,348$           
2026 2,153,116                       948,732                              3,101,848                        -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          2,153,116             948,732          3,101,848             
2027 2,226,359                       876,864                              3,103,223                        -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          2,226,359             876,864          3,103,223             
2028 2,192,521                       803,644                              2,996,165                        -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          2,192,521             803,644          2,996,165             
2029 2,158,743                       735,863                              2,894,606                        -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          2,158,743             735,863          2,894,606             
2030 - 2034 11,853,098                     2,609,219                           14,462,317                      -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          11,853,098           2,609,219       14,462,317           
2035 - 2039 10,907,936                     663,113                              11,571,049                      -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          10,907,936           663,113          11,571,049           
2040 - 2044 -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          -                       -                  -                        
2045 - 2049 -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          -                       -                  -                        
2050 - 2054 -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          -                       -                  -                        
Thereafter -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          -                       -                  -                        

Total minimum payments 33,574,942$                   7,655,614                           41,230,556                      -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          33,574,942           7,655,614       41,230,556           
Less: amounts representing interest (7,655,614)            

Present value of future minimum payments 33,574,942           
Total Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilities 33,574,942           

Less: current portion (2,083,169)            

Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilities, net of current portion  $         31,491,773 

6
Future minimum payments schedule - Long-term debt 
obligations:

Principal Interest Principal and Interest Principal Interest Principal and Interest Principal Interest
Principal and 

Interest

Year ending June 30:
2025 -$                               -$                                   -$                                 2,420,000$                   871,886$                 3,291,886$                     2,420,000$                  871,886$                      3,291,886$             
2026 -                                 -                                     -                                   3,335,000                     850,699                   4,185,699                       3,335,000                    850,699                        4,185,699               
2027 -                                 -                                     -                                   3,375,000                     817,054                   4,192,054                       3,375,000                    817,054                        4,192,054               
2028 -                                 -                                     -                                   3,275,000                     775,497                   4,050,497                       3,275,000                    775,497                        4,050,497               
2029 -                                 -                                     -                                   3,325,000                     727,924                   4,052,924                       3,325,000                    727,924                        4,052,924               
2030 - 2034 -                                 -                                     -                                   17,510,000                   2,735,880                20,245,880                     17,510,000                  2,735,880                     20,245,880             
2035 - 2039 -                                 -                                     -                                   15,430,000                   767,689                   16,197,689                     15,430,000                  767,689                        16,197,689             
2040 - 2044 -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
2045 - 2049 -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
2050 - 2054 -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          
Thereafter -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                           -                                  -                               -                                -                          

Total minimum payments -$                               -$                                   -$                                 48,670,000$                 7,546,629$              56,216,629$                   48,670,000$                7,546,629$                   56,216,629$           
Less: amounts representing interest (7,546,629)              

Present value of future minimum payments 48,670,000             
Unamortized net premium/(discount) -                          
Total long-term debt obligations 48,670,000             
Less: current portion (2,420,000)              
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 46,250,000$           

Lease Liabilities Total Leases, SBITA, P3 liabilities 

Auxiliary revenue bonds (non-SRB related) All other long-term debt obligations Total long-term debt obligations

SBITA liabilities Public-Private or Public-Public Partnerships (P3)

 

55



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

44 

7 Transactions with related entities:

Payments to University for salaries of University personnel 
working on contracts, grants, and other programs  $                       114,860 

Payments to University for other than salaries of University 
personnel                        4,648,374 

Payments received from University for services, space, and 
programs                        1,633,930 

Gifts-in-kind to the University from discretely presented 
component units                                       - 

Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from discretely 
presented component units                                       - 

Accounts payable to University                          (147,822)
Other amounts payable to University                                       - 
Accounts receivable from University                           249,145 
Other amounts receivable from University                                       - 

8 Restatements: Not applicable  
 

9 Natural classifications of operating expenses:

 Salaries  Benefits - Other  Benefits - Pension  Benefits - OPEB 
 Scholarships and 

fellowships 
 Supplies and other 

services 
 Depreciation and 

amortization 
 Total operating 

expenses 

Instruction -$                               -                                     -                                   -                                -                                  -                                
Research -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                                  -                                
Public service -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                3,155,200                       3,155,200                     
Academic support -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                                  -                                
Student services -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                                  -                                
Institutional support -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                                  -                                
Operation and maintenance of plant -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                1,713,523                       1,713,523                     
Student grants and scholarships -                           -                                
Auxiliary enterprise expenses -                                 -                                     -                                   -                                -                                  -                                
Depreciation and amortization 2,443,765                    2,443,765                     

Total operating expenses -$                               -                                     -                                   -                                -                           4,868,723                       2,443,765                    7,312,488$                   

56



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Other Information 
June 30, 2024 

 
 

45 

True
10 Deferred outflows/inflows of resources:

1. Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - unamortized loss on refunding(s)  $                    4,639,775 
Deferred outflows - net pension liability -                                 
Deferred outflows - net OPEB liability -                                 
Deferred outflows - leases -                                 
Deferred outflows - P3 -                                 
Deferred outflows - others: -                                 

Sales/intra-entity transfers of future revenues -                                 
Gain/loss on sale leaseback -                                 
Loan origination fees and costs -                                 
Change in fair value of hedging derivative instrument -                                 
Irrevocable split-interest agreements -                                 

-                                 
-                                 
-                                 

Total deferred outflows - others -                                 

Total deferred outflows of resources 4,639,775$                     

2. Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - P3 service concession arrangements -$                               
Deferred inflows - net pension liability -                                 
Deferred inflows - net OPEB liability -                                 

Deferred inflows - unamortized gain on debt refunding(s) -                                 
Deferred inflows - nonexchange transactions -                                 
Deferred inflows - leases -                                 
Deferred inflows - P3 -                                 
Deferred inflows - others: -                                 

Sales/intra-entity transfers of future revenues -                                 
Gain/loss on sale leaseback -                                 
Loan origination fees and costs -                                 
Change in fair value of hedging derivative instrument -                                 
Irrevocable split-interest agreements -                                 

-                                 
-                                 
-                                 

Total deferred inflows - others -                                 

Total deferred inflows of resources -$                               

11 Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Other nonoperating revenues 6,591,711$                     
Other nonoperating (expenses)                          (878,640)

Total other nonoperating revenues (expenses)
5,713,071$                     

57



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Schedule 1 - Supplementary Schedule of 
Net Position (Deficit) by Program  

June 30, 2024 
 
 

46 

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,450,847$         
Accounts receivable 2,880,268           
Due from CSU Channel Islands 249,145              
Investments 11,068,873         
Prepaid expense 28,242                
Due from CSUCI Financing Authority - restricted 15,429                
Other assets - refunding of debt 4,639,775           
Capital assets, net 32,298,683         

Total assets 58,631,262$       
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 618,063$            
Interest payable to CSU Systemwide Revenue Bonds 416,185              
Deferred Revenue 1,111,962           
Due to CSU Channel Islands 148,221              
Loan from CSU Office of the Chancellor 48,670,000         
Lease liability 668,000              
PPP liability 32,906,942         

Total liabilities 84,539,373         
Net assets (deficit) (25,908,111)        

Total liabilities and net assets 58,631,262$       
 

 
 

58



California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
 

Schedule 2 - Supplementary Schedule of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in  

Net Position (Deficit) by Program  
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 
 

47 

General CI Common Area Mission Hills & Low & Moderate Broome
Operations Power 32 Acres Maintenance Anacapa Apts Income East Campus Library Total

Operating revenues:
Energy sales -$                       2,877,674$            -$                       -$                      -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       2,877,674$            
Maintenance rent and reserve -                         -                         -                         2,841,649             -                         -                         -                         -                         2,841,649              
Sublease rent -                         -                         2,137,706              -                        931,522                 -                         -                         -                         3,069,228              
Home sales 46,475                   -                         -                         -                        -                         -                                                -  -                         46,475                   
Miscellaneous revenues 10,850                                          -  1,890                     -                                              -                         -                         -                         -  12,740                   

Total operating revenues 57,325                   2,877,674              2,139,596              2,841,649             931,522                 -                             -                             -                             8,847,766              

Operating expenses:
Cost of energy sales -                         1,713,523                                     -                             -                        -                         -                         -                         -  1,713,523              
Depreciation of capital assets 1,645                     184,880                 -                         -                        -                         -                         2,257,240                                     -  2,443,765              
General, administrative, and other expenses 455,653                 -                         43,737                   2,282,470             304,070                 -                         69,270                   -                         3,155,200              

Total operating expenses 457,298                 1,898,403              43,737                   2,282,470             304,070                 -                         2,326,510              -                         7,312,488              

Operating income (loss) (399,973)                979,271                 2,095,859              559,179                627,452                 -                         (2,326,510)             -                         1,535,278              

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest expense -                         (40,672)                  -                                                    -  -                         -                         (1,132,155)             -                         (1,172,827)             
Investment income 175,794                                        -  -                         186,210                -                         -                                                -  -                         362,004                 
Property tax -                                                -  -                                                    -  -                         495,606                 1,982,424              -                         2,478,030              
Sales tax 29,192                                          -  -                                                    -  -                         -                                                -  -                         29,192                   
Special tax -                                                -  -                                                    -  -                         36,149                   786,254                 -                         822,403                 
Pass through tax -                                                -  -                                                    -  -                         -                         (793,552)                -                         (793,552)                
Contribution for debt service -                                                -  -                                                    -  -                         -                                                -  2,525,733              2,525,733              
Interest on loan payable to CSU, Channel Islands -                                                -  -                                                    -  -                         -                                                -  (913,924)                (913,924)                
Other nonoperating revenue (expense) 87,359                   644,681                 -                         -                        -                         -                         (80,775)                  -                         651,265                 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 292,345                 604,009.00            -                         186,210                -                         531,755                 762,196                 1,611,809              3,988,324              

Transfer for payment of infrastructure debt -                             -                         -                         -                        -                         (531,755)                531,755                 -                         -                         

Income (loss) before transfers (to) from
other CSU funds (107,628)                1,583,280              2,095,859              745,389                627,452                 -                         (1,032,559)             1,611,809              5,523,602              

Changes in net position (107,628)                1,583,280              2,095,859              745,389                627,452                 -                         (1,032,559)             1,611,809              5,523,602              

Net position (deficit), beginning of year 700,445                 8,710,154              182,883                 3,781,030             1,750,282              -                         933,386                 (47,489,893)           (31,431,713)           

Net position (deficit), end of year 592,817$               10,293,434$          2,278,742$            4,526,419$           2,377,734$            -$                           (99,173)$                (45,878,084)$         (25,908,111)$         

 
 

59



 

48 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 
California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial 
statements of the business-type activities of California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority 
("Site Authority"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Site Authority's basic financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated September 17, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Site Authority's 
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Site Authority's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Site Authority's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Site Authority's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

60



 

49 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
 
Los Angeles, California 
September 17, 2024 

61



62



 

 

California  State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Financial Statements  

(With Supplementary Information)  
and Independent Auditor's Report 

 
June 30, 2024 and 2023  

63



California State University, Channel Islands 
Financing Authority 

 
Index 

 
 

1 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report  2 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 5 

Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position 9 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 10 

Statement of Cash Flows 11 

Notes to Financial Statements 12 

Supplementary Information 

GASB Schedule of Net Position 18 

GASB Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 19 

Other Information 20 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards 22 

 

64



 

2 

Independent Auditor's Report  

The Board of Directors  
The California State University, Channel Islands Financing Authority 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of California State University, Channel Islands Financing 
Authority (the "Financing Authority"), a component unit of California State University, Channel Islands as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Financing Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the index. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Financing Authority as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its financial position and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America ("GAAS") and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Financing Authority and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Financing Authority's ability 
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

65



 

3 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Financing Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Financing Authority's ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 5 to 7 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

66



 

4 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Financing Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary 
information on pages 18 to 21 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by an 
Administrative Directive dated June 24, 2003, Financial Reporting Requirements for Auxiliary 
Organizations, from the California State University Office of the Chancellor, and is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information  

We have previously audited the Financing Authority's June 30, 2023 financial statements, and we 
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated 
September 15, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2023 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial 
statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 
17, 2024 on our consideration of the Financing Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Financing Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Financing Authority's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

 
 
 
Los Angeles, California 
September 17, 2024 
 

67



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Management's Discussion and Analysis  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 
(Unaudited) 

 
 

5 

This section of the California State University, Channel Islands Financing Authority (the "Financing 
Authority") annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the financial performance of 
the Financing Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. This discussion has been prepared by 
management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes. 

Introduction to the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements prepared in accordance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - 
and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, No. 35, Basic Financial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities, No. 37, 
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments: Omnibus, and No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. For reporting 
purposes, the Financing Authority is considered a special purpose government engaged only in business 
- type activities, which best represent the activities of the Financing Authority. 

The financial statements include the statement of net position; the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position; and the statement of cash flows. These statements are supported by the notes 
to the financial statements and this section. All sections must be considered together to obtain a complete 
understanding of the financial picture of the Financing Authority. 

Statement of Net Position  

The statement of net position includes all assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities are reported at their 
book value, on an accrual basis, as of the statement date. It also identifies major categories of restrictions 
on the net position of the Financing Authority. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the revenues earned and 
expenses incurred during the year on an accrual basis. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

The statement of cash flows presents the inflows and outflows of cash for the year and is summarized 
by operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities. The statement 
is prepared using the direct method of cash flows and, therefore, presents gross rather than net amounts 
for the year's activities. 

Analytical Overview 

Summary 

The following discussion highlights management's understanding of the key financial aspects of the 
Financing Authority's financial activities. Included are an analysis of current year activities and balances, 
and a summary of operations. 

  

68



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Management's Discussion and Analysis  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 
(Unaudited) 

 
 

6 

The Financing Authority's summary of net position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

2024 2023 $ Change % Change

Assets
Current assets  $         21,504  $         18,904 2,600$           13.8%
Other noncurrent assets -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total assets  $         21,504  $         18,904 2,600$           13.8%

Liabilities
Current liabilities  $         21,504  $         18,904 2,600$           13.8%
Other noncurrent liabilities -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total liabilities  $         21,504  $         18,904 2,600$           13.8%

Net position
  Net investment in capital assets -$               -$               -$               -                 
  Restricted -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Unrestricted -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total net position -$               -$               -$               -                 
 

Assets 
The current assets represent cash and a receivable for special taxes expected to be paid to the 
Financing Authority by the County of Ventura.  The increase of $2.6 thousand is due to an increase 
in cash of $6.1 thousand offset by a $3.5 thousand decrease of unpaid taxes compared to the prior 
year. 

Liabilities 
The current liabilities represent $15.4 thousand payable to the California State University Channel 
Islands Site Authority and a $6.1 thousand payable for professional services.   

Net position 
Special taxes received from the County of Ventura are transferred to the California State University 
Channel Islands Site Authority. The Financing Authority functions as a pass-through entity and 
therefore has no net position. 

69



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Management's Discussion and Analysis  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 
(Unaudited) 

 
 

7 

The Financing Authority's condensed summary of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position 
for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 is as follows: 

2024 2023 $ Change % Change

Operating revenues
Other operating revenues: Special tax 836,372$       822,286$       14,086$         1.7%

Total operating revenues 836,372         822,286         14,086           1.7%

Operating expenses
General, administrative, and other 
operating costs 13,969 15,256 (1,287) -8.4%
Transfer to California State University, 
Channel Islands -                 -                 -                 -                 
Site Authority - Special Tax - 
Communities Facilities District 822,403 807,030 15,373 1.9%

Total operating expenses 836,372 822,286 14,086 1.7%

Operating income -                 -                 -                 -                 

Changes in net position -                 -                 -                 -                 

Beginning net position -                 -                 -                 -                 

Ending net position -$               -$               -$               -                 
 

Operating revenues and expenses 
Operating revenues and expenses come from sources that are connected directly to the Financing 
Authority's business function, which is to provide financing for public capital improvements serving 
California State University, Channel Islands. The Financing Authority currently receives special taxes 
from housing originally financed by the Financing Authority.  The Financing Authority then transfers 
the income less general, administrative, and other operating costs to California State University 
Channel Islands Site Authority who is paying the debt. 

Operating revenues 
The operating revenues are comprised of special taxes collected by the County of Ventura from 
privately-owned single-family homes and townhomes in University Glen and then reapportioned to 
the Financing Authority. The revenue increased by $14 thousand primarily due to an increase in the 
special tax assessed and received. 

Operating expenses 
General, administrative and operating costs are comprised of professional fees and assessment fees 
from the County of Ventura.   The remaining funds are then transferred to California State University 
Channel Islands Site Authority. There was no significant change in the operating expenses from the 
prior year. 

70



 

 
 

Basic Financial Statements

71



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 
With Summarized Totals at June 30, 2023 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
 

9 

2024 2023

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,075$               -$                  
Accounts receivable - property tax 15,429               18,904               

Total current assets 21,504               18,904               

Total assets 21,504$             18,904$             

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 6,075$               -$                  
Due to California State University, Channel Islands Site 
Authority 15,429               18,904               

Total current liabilities 21,504               18,904               

Total liabilities 21,504               18,904               

Net position
Unrestricted -                    -                    

Total net position -$                  -$                  

Liabilities and Net Position

Assets

 
 

72



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position  

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
With Summarized Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
 

10 

2024 2023

Operating revenues
Other operating revenues: Special tax 836,372$           822,286$           

Total operating revenues 836,372             822,286             

Operating expenses
General, administrative, and other operating costs 13,969               15,256               
Transfer to California State University, Channel Islands
Site Authority - Special Tax - Community Facilities District 822,403             807,030             

Total operating expenses 836,372             822,286             

Operating income -                    -                    

Changes in net position -                    -                    

Net position, beginning of year -                    -                    

Net position, end of year -$                  -$                  
 

73



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 
With Summarized Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
 

11 

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash paid to suppliers (7,894)$             (15,256)$           

Net cash used in operating activities (7,894)               (15,256)             

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Tax receipts 836,372             822,286             
Special taxes (822,403)           (807,030)           

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 13,969               15,256               

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,075                 -                    

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year -                    -                    

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6,075$               -$                  

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
used in operating activities

Operating income -$                  -$                  
Taxes (13,969)             (15,256)             
Change in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable - property tax 3,475                 (7,606)               
Accounts payable 6,075                 -                    
Due to related party (3,475)               7,606                 

Net cash used in operating activities (7,894)$             (15,256)$           
 

 

74



California State University, Channel Islands 
Financing Authority 

 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

 
12 

Note 1 - Organization  

The California State University, Channel Islands Financing Authority (the "Financing Authority") was 
formed on May 10, 2000 under and pursuant to a Joint Powers Authority formed by and between the 
Trustees of the California State University (the "CSU Trustees") and the California State University, 
Channel Islands Site Authority (the "Site Authority"). The Financing Authority's purpose is to provide 
financing for public capital improvements serving the California State University, Channel Islands (the 
"Campus").  

The Financing Authority is authorized to issue revenue bonds to be used to finance and refinance the 
cost of constructing various public improvements on property transferred to the CSU Trustees and 
will be managed by the Site Authority. The West Campus consists of developed space on 42 acres 
of what was formerly the Camarillo State Hospital. This portion of the Campus is centered on 
academic uses and houses the Campus.  

The Financing Authority is an integral part of the Campus, and the financial transactions of the 
Financing Authority are also included in the financial statements of the Campus as a discretely 
presented component unit. 

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies  

Accounting method 
The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  

Basis of presentation 
The accompanying financial statements of the Financing Authority have been prepared using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board ("GASB"). Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

The financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows. The Financing Authority is considered a 
special-purpose government. The Financing Authority records revenue primarily from property taxes 
and, accordingly, has chosen to present its financial statements using the reporting model for special-
purpose governments engaged only in business-type activities. This model allows all financial 
information for the Financing Authority to be reported in a single column in each of the financial 
statements. In accordance with the business-type activities reporting model, the Financing Authority 
prepares its statement of cash flows using the direct method. 

Election of applicable FASB statements 
The Financing Authority has elected to follow private-sector standards of accounting and financial 
reporting issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") prior to November 30, 1989, 
unless those standards conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. The Financing Authority also 
has the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance subject to the same limitation. The 
Financing Authority has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

75



California State University, Channel Islands 
Financing Authority 

 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

 
13 

Financial reporting entity 
The financial statements include the accounts of the Financing Authority. The Financing Authority is 
a government organization under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America and is also a component unit of the Campus, a public university under the California State 
University system. The Financing Authority has chosen to use the reporting model for special-purpose 
governments engaged only in business type activities. 

Classification of revenues and expenses 
The Financing Authority considers operating revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position to be those revenues and expenses that result from exchange 
and nonexchange transactions or other activities that are connected directly to the Financing 
Authority's primary functions.  

Cash and cash equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid debt 
instruments with a maturity of three months or less from date of purchase. The Financing Authority 
maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank accounts which, at times, may exceed federally 
insured limits. The Financing Authority has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes 
it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash. As of June 30, 2024, the Financing Authority's 
bank deposits were fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.  

Revenue recognition 
Revenue consists of special taxes which are recognized when the taxes are levied. 

Income taxes 
The Financing Authority was formed pursuant to Articles 1 - 4, Chapter 5, division 7, title 1 of the 
Government Code of the State of California and, as a governmental entity, is not subject to federal or 
state income taxes. 

Property taxes 
All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority from the State Constitution and various 
legislative provisions contained in the State Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. 
Property is originally assessed at 100% of full cash or market value at the date of transfer or 
completion of construction pursuant to Article XIII(A) of the California State Constitution and statutory 
provisions by the County Assessor and State Board of Equalization. 

Pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, the Financing Authority formed 
Community Facilities District No. 2000-1 (the "District") on November 6, 2000 to assist in financing 
the development of the Campus. The District is authorized to incur a maximum of $50,000,000 of 
indebtedness to provide for the cost of certain public facilities and services. The District may levy and 
collect a special tax within the district to repay such indebtedness. The special taxes are payable and 
are collected in the same manner and time as are general and ad valorem taxes on real property. 

Property taxes are levied on both real and personal property. Secured property taxes become a lien 
on the property on January 1 or the date on which title to the property transfers or improvements to 
the property are completed. Secured property taxes are levied July 1 and payable in two equal 
installments the first is generally due on November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 
10; the second is generally due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Special 
tax revenues are recognized in the period in which they are levied, net of amounts determined to be 
uncollectible. 

76



California State University, Channel Islands 
Financing Authority 

 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

 
14 

Supplemental property tax assessments/refunds associated with changes in assessed valuations due 
to transfers of title and completed property improvements are levied in two equal installments and 
have variable due dates based on the date of title transfer and/or completion of the property 
improvements. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Management also determines the accounting principles to be used 
in the preparation of the financial statements. 

Comparative totals 
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but 
not by net position class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Financing Authority's 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023 from which the summarized information was 
derived.  

Special taxes 
The Financing Authority transfers special tax receipts (the Mello-Roos property tax receipts) along 
with any interest earned after paying any related fees to the Site Authority. The transferred amount is 
used to pay the Site Authority's lease obligations. 

Fair value measurements 
The Financing Authority reports its fair value measurements using a three-level hierarchy that 
prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value in accordance with GASB 72, Fair Value 
Measurement and Application. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal or most advantageous market at the 
measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer 
broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including 
assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs 
that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on 
market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are 
inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants 
would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available. GASB 72 establishes 
a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. 
This hierarchy, established by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, requires that entities 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring 
fair value. 

77



California State University, Channel Islands 
Financing Authority 

 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

 
15 

The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows: 

Level 1 Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets to which Financing 
Authority has access at the measurement date. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include;  

 quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 

 quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active; 

 observable inputs other than quoted prices for the asset or liability (for example, 
interest rates and yield curves); and 

 inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by 
correlation or by other means. 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs should be used to 
measure the fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available. 

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate fair value because of the terms and 
relatively short maturity of these financial instruments. 

The carrying amounts of liabilities approximate fair value because of the relatively short maturity of 
these financial instruments.  

When available, Financing Authority measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because they generally 
provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. 

Note 3 - Due to CSUCI Site Authority 

Pursuant to the terms of the trust agreements with U.S. Bank and The Bank of New York (each, a 
Trustee), the Financing Authority holds the cash from the sale of the Revenue Bonds with the Trustee 
for those Revenue Bonds and the Trustee disburses cash to the Site Authority as expenses are 
incurred. Amount due to the Site Authority at June 30, 2024 was $15,429 and consists of special tax 
receipts yet to transfer, which will be used for upcoming lease payments. 

Note 4 - Related party transactions 

Substantially all of the transactions entered into by the Financing Authority are with the Site Authority.

78



California State University, Channel Islands 
Financing Authority 

 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

 
16 

Note 5 - Contingencies 

From time to time, the Financing Authority may have claims against it arising from its normal 
operations. Currently, there are no claims or litigation against the Financing Authority. 

 

79



 

 
 

Supplementary Information 

80



California State University, Channel Islands 
Financing Authority 

 
GASB Schedule of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 
(for Inclusion in the California State University) 

 
 

 
18 

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $                  6,075 
Short-term investments                            -   
Accounts receivable, net                    15,429 
Lease receivable, current portion                            -   
P3 receivable, current portion                            -   
Notes receivable, current portion                            -   
Pledges receivable, net                            -   
Prepaid expenses and other current assets                            -   

Total current assets                    21,504 

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents                            -   
Accounts receivable, net                            -   
Lease receivable, net of current portion                            -   
P3 receivable, net of current portion                            -   
Notes receivable, net of current portion                            -   
Student loans receivable, net                            -   
Pledges receivable, net                            -   
Endowment investments                            -   
Other long-term investments                            -   
Capital assets, net                            -   
Other assets                            -   

Total noncurrent assets                            -   

Total assets                    21,504 

Deferred outflows of resources:

Unamortized loss on debt refunding                            -   
Net pension liability                            -   
Net OPEB liability                            -   
Leases                            -   
P3                            -   
Others                            -   

Total deferred outflows of resources                            -   

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable                    21,504 
Accrued salaries and benefits                            -   
Accrued compensated absences, current portion                            -   
Unearned revenues                            -   
Lease liabilities, current portion                            -   
SBITA liabilities - current portion                            -   
P3 liabilities - current portion                            -   
Long-term debt obligations, current portion                            -   
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, current portion                            -   
Depository accounts                            -   
Other liabilities                            -   

Total current liabilities                    21,504 
Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion                            -   
Unearned revenues                            -   
Grants refundable                            -   
Lease liabilities, net of current portion                            -   
SBITA liabilities, net of current portion                            -   
P3 liabilities, net of current portion                            -   
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion                            -   
Claims liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of current portion                            -   
Depository accounts                            -   
Net other postemployment benefits liability                            -   
Net pension liability                            -   
Other liabilities                            -   

Total noncurrent liabilities                            -   
Total liabilities                    21,504 

Deferred inflows of resources:

P3 service concession arrangements                            -   
Net pension liability                            -   
Net OPEB liability                            -   
Unamortized gain on debt refunding                            -   
Nonexchange transactions                            -   
Lease                            -   
P3                            -   
Others                            -   

Total deferred inflows of resources                            -   
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets                            -   
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable – endowments                            -   
Expendable:

Scholarships and fellowships                            -   
Research                            -   
Loans                            -   
Capital projects                            -   
Debt service                            -   
Others                            -   

Unrestricted                            -   
Total net position  $                        -   

 

81



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
GASB Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

June 30, 2024 
(for Inclusion in the California State University) 

 
 

 
19 

Revenues:

Operating revenues:

Student tuition and fees, gross  $                        -   
Scholarship allowances (enter as negative)                            -   

Grants and contracts, noncapital:

Federal                            -   
State                            -   
Local                            -   
Nongovernmental                            -   

Sales and services of educational activities                            -   
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross                            -   

Scholarship allowances (enter as negative)                            -   
Other operating revenues                  836,372 

Total operating revenues                  836,372 

Expenses:

Operating expenses:

Instruction                            -   
Research                            -   
Public service                            -   
Academic support                            -   
Student services                            -   
Institutional support                  836,372 
Operation and maintenance of plant                            -   
Student grants and scholarships                            -   
Auxiliary enterprise expenses                            -   
Depreciation and amortization                            -   

Total operating expenses                  836,372 

Operating income (loss)                            -   

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

State appropriations, noncapital                            -   
Federal financial aid grants, noncapital                            -   
State financial aid grants, noncapital                            -   
Local financial aid grants, noncapital                            -   
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital                            -   
Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital                            -   
Gifts, noncapital                            -   
Investment income (loss), net                            -   
Endowment income (loss), net                            -   
Interest expense                            -   
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses)                            -   

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)                            -   

Income (loss)  before other revenues (expenses)                            -   

State appropriations, capital                            -   
Grants and gifts, capital                            -   
Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments                            -   
Increase (decrease) in net position                            -   

Net position:

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported                            -   
Restatements                            -   
Net position at beginning of year, as restated                            -   
Net position at end of year  $                        -   

 

82



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Other Information 

June 30, 2024 
(for Inclusion in the California State University) 

 
 

 
20 

1 Cash and cash equivalents: Not applicable

Portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents related to endowments  $                                         -   

All other restricted cash and cash equivalents                                             -   
Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents                                             -   
Current cash and cash equivalents                                        6,075 
Total  $                                    6,075 

2.1 Composition of investments: Not applicable

2.2 Fair value hierarchy in investments: Not applicable

2.3

3.1 Capital Assets, excluding ROU assets: Not applicable

3.2 Detail of depreciation and amortization expense: Not applicable 

4 Long-term liabilities: Not applicable

5

6 Future minimum payments schedule - Long-term debt obligations: Not applicable

7 Transactions with related entities: Not applicable

8 Restatements: Not applicable

Investments held by the University under contractual agreements: Not applicable 

Future minimum payments schedule - leases, SBITA, P3: Not applicable

 

83



California State University, Channel Islands  
Financing Authority 

 
Other Information 

June 30, 2024 
(for Inclusion in the California State University) 

 
 

 
21 

9 Natural classifications of operating expenses:

 Salaries  Benefits - Other  Benefits - Pension  Benefits - OPEB 
 Scholarships and 

fellowships  Supplies and other services 
 Depreciation and 

amortization  Total operating expenses 

Instruction  $                                         -    $                                               -    $                                           -    $                                       -    $                                  -    $                                          -    $                                       -    $                                        -   
Research                                             -                                                     -                                                 -                                             -                                        -                                                -                                             -                                              -   
Public service                                             -                                                     -                                                 -                                             -                                        -                                                -                                             -                                              -   
Academic support                                             -                                                     -                                                 -                                             -                                        -                                                -                                             -                                              -   
Student services                                             -                                                     -                                                 -                                             -                                        -                                                -                                             -                                              -   
Institutional support                                             -                                                     -                                                 -                                             -                                        -                                       836,372                                           -                                    836,372 
Operation and maintenance of plant                                             -                                                     -                                                 -                                             -                                        -                                                -                                             -                                              -   
Student grants and scholarships                                             -                                                     -                                                 -                                             -                                        -                                                -                                             -                                              -   
Auxiliary enterprise expenses                                             -                                                     -                                                 -                                             -                                        -                                                -                                             -                                              -   
Depreciation and amortization                                             -                                                     -                                             -                                        -                                                -                                             -                                              -   

Total operating expenses  $                                         -    $                                               -    $                                           -    $                                       -    $                                  -    $                                 836,372  $                                       -    $                              836,372 
 

10 Deferred outflows/inflows of resources: Not applicable

11 Other nonoperating revenues (expenses): Not applicable  
 

84



 

22 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on  
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

The Board of Directors 
California State University, Channel Islands Financing Authority 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial 
statements of the business-type activities of California State University, Channel Islands Financing 
Authority (the "Financing Authority"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Financing Authority's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 17, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Financing Authority's 
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Financing 
Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Financing Authority's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Financing Authority's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

85



 

23 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
 
Los Angeles, California 
September 17, 2024 

86



87



1 

 

SITE AUTHORITY 

Agenda Item #9 
Information Item 

December 2, 2024 
 
 

ANACAPA CANYON OPERATIONS REPORT 
 

BACKGROUND 

The Site Authority previously approved a long-term partnership with Kennedy Wilson (KW) to develop 
the final phase of the University Glen residential community. The development will consist of 589 
additional units including 310 market rate apartments, 170 age-restricted/income-based rental units, 
109 total single-family homes (64 townhouses and 45 single-family detached houses), and amenities. 
A Master Ground Sublease (or Master Sublease) with KW was signed on September 27, 2021, and 
work on the site began in November 2021. 

CURRENT STATUS 

The senior age restricted apartments (Vintage at Anacapa Canyon) are fully built, occupied, and 
lease stabilized.  The market rate apartments (Villas at Anacapa Canyon) are still in the lease-up 
phase.  There are 6 buildings still left that have been completed from a construction standpoint, 
yet still need to be approved for occupancy which should all be receiving final sign off and 
certificates of occupancy by the end of August.   As of mid-August, the market rate apartments are 
51% occupied and 70% leased.   If the final buildings receive sign off as expected, and leasing 
continues at the same pace of roughly 15 units per week, we expect the project to reach 
stabilization early in Q4.   It is safe to say that the project will be a fully occupied thriving community 
by the end of this year.  Common areas like the clubhouse and pool are now open to both residents 
of Anacapa Canyon and University Glen and are being utilized. 
 
CONSTRUCTION/OCCUPANCY DETAILS 

Rental Units 
Vintage at Anacapa Canyon remains stable and fully operational. Villas at Anacapa Canyon are still in 
the lease up phase, nearing stabilization.   All buildings have been delivered and received certificates 
of occupancy. The occupancy level is 82.9% and they are leased to 89.03%.   Leasing has slowed down 
from previous periods, but we’re still hopeful to be stabilized above 90% occupancy by year end.   
 
Owned Units 
All 32 Townhomes within Phases 1-4 are complete and closed. Phase 5 TH are under construction with 
closing dates in December 2024; Phase 6 TH are under construction with deliveries in March. There 
are 20 TH units left to sell including the models. The final build-out phase will begin trenching next week. 

22 of the 23 units of the single-family detached homes within Phases 1-3 are closed with the last closing 
slated for this week. Six Phase 4 SFD are complete, however, there are only 2 in contract. 6 Phase 5 
units will be complete next month with 1 in contract. There are incentives in place to move this inventory. 
The final 8 Phase 6 SFD will begin trenching this month. There are 19 SFD units left to sell including 
the models.  

All TH and SFD construction are still scheduled for completion by July 2025. 

88



2 

 
OPERATIONS UPDATE 

 
The property management firm, Seabreeze, continues to provide property management services.  
Parking in the community is an area where work continues being done to better manage that and CIPD 
is working with Site Authority staff, Seabreeze and Comstock on solutions.  Homeowners in Anacapa 
Canyon are now able to park in front of their own driveway parallel to the street and need to be within 
18” of the curb.  Single Family Homeowners can now park their vehicle parallel to the curbline in front 
of their own garages/driveways as long as they are not parked blocking the sidewalk in any way or 
protruding into the roadway. 
 
CIPD met with AT&T to walk the community and they have identified the roof of Vintage Senior 
age/income restricted apartments as the best location for cell phone boosters as an interim solution and 
antenna for the long term solution. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 

The direct billing of water to all of the homes in Anacapa Canyon, since they all have meters 
installed on them is being further refined within the 3rd party contractor that collects the water usage 
data and then charges the individual resident for their usage. 

89



 
 

SITE AUTHORITY 
Agenda Item #10 
Information Item 

December 2, 2024 
 
 

 
UNIVERSITY GLEN OPERATIONS REPORT 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The Site Authority (SA) is staffed by CSUCI staff for oversight of operations, budgeting, 
accounting, and home sales coordination. The CSUCI Staff are represented by the Site Authority 
Liaison (Laurie Nichols), Executive Director of Operations (John Lazarus), Financial Services 
(Stephanie Bracamontes, Minna Chang), Facilities (Terry Tarr), and Sales (Christina Sotelo). 

 
Property management for University Glen is under contract with Seabreeze. They also have 
provided property management services to Anacapa Canyon since Fall 2024.  Seabreeze is 
providing 5 days per week, full-time on-site property management.  The automation and efficiency that 
they bring to the community are continuing to roll out and efficiency is increasing which serves to 
hold down cost to the property owners. 

 
FOLLOW-UP FROM PUBLIC COMMENTS AND BOARD REQUESTS 
 
Mary Kennedy, Chairperson of the Homeowners Advisory Council, suggested allowing public 
comments after the agenda item were discussed. Allowing the public comment to address the 
discussion on the agenda item. This is not practical because of the time it would take to allow 
individual comments from all interested people for each subject on the Agenda. 
She suggested CSU Channel Islands become involved with the new initiative called Healthy 
Camarillo. Introduced in 2020 by City Council members Charlotte Craven and Tony Trembley. Their 
goal is to create community health and wellness programs alongside local health professionals. 
Ideas for collaboration would be interesting to explore. She expressed her concerns about the 
installation of the water meters. She stated that the installation of water meters would be a burden 
on the community. This is addressed further down this Report. 
 
Gabrielle Powell, a member of the Homeowners Advisory Council, expressed her concern for the  
governance restructure. She requested the restructuring of the Budget Advisory Group charter and  
suggested that it adopt the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. This would include an agenda sent out  
ten days in advance. With Budget Advisory Group meeting minutes, the community could provide  
feedback on budgeting decisions.  This is being discussed on Agenda Item #15 
 
Tiina Itkonen a CSUCI professor expressed her concerns about the installation of the water meters 
and shifting the maintenance to the homeowners. She stated that homeowners would not be able 
to purchase insurance for the maintenance of the pipes. She asked the board to maintain the fiscal 
health of the University. Her worries include unintended consequences that would tarnish the 
reputation of the University. This is addressed further down this Report. 
 
UPDATE ON EV CHARGING PROJECT  
 
The question of future capacity was brought up at the last Board Meeting. Facilities is not sure how 
much extra capacity they are accounting for in the cabling, but they also have financial metrics they 
have to meet on the project, so they likely aren't open to increasing the voltage capacity beyond 
what is needed for this particular project.  If we want to add more chargers to campus in the future, 
based on feedback we've received from campus regarding this project, we should focus on other 

90



areas of campus so that the charging is more broadly distributed. 
 
 
COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT REPORT 
 
An update on the Exhibit C/CAM fee issue. On October 21, Site Authority Staff met with the 
homeowners at the HAC meeting, presenting the background, reasoning for the change, and 
requesting homeowner’s agreement.  Homeowners were allowed to ask questions and Staff 
answered those.  On October 24, a letter was emailed and then mailed to all homeowners stating 
the background, reasoning for the change, and requesting homeowner’s agreement along with 
FAQ and a sample Exhibit C.  Those were also posted to the Homeowners Resource website. 
That Letter is pasted below. An email address and dedicated phone number were established to 
allow homeowners to submit any questions they had regarding the standardization of Exhibit C 
and those were compiled and answers were gathered. Site Authority Staff again met with 
homeowners on November 12 to again present the background, and reasoning for the change 
and to answer all of the questions submitted as well as to answer any questions posed at that 
meeting.  The FAQs were updated to include the additional questions and that along with a letter 
was posted to the Homeowner Resource webpage, sent via email as well as sent via mail 
November 18.  As of 4:00 p.m., November 22, 2024, the response rate is 16.6% of total 
homeowners (453) for a total of 75 individual homeowners.  No to Yes ratio is 1.3:1. Target of 66 
2/3% of homeowner approval is currently at 7.1%. (The numbers may change once the survey 
closes on November 22, 2024.) 
 
Efforts at improved governance in University Glen have resulted in improvements and frequency 
of the BAG.  The CAG is being looked at for changes in composition and oversight and that will 
be discussed as Agenda Item #15 during the Board Meeting. 
 
There was a letter sent to the HAC and some Homeowners on Tuesday 10/15/24 about 
questions/concerns they had regarding water meters and treadmills.  It was also shared with the 
Board and posted to the Owner Resource website. 
 
The HAC wrote the Board on 11/16 with questions regarding the standardization of Exhibit C of 
the Ground Sublease.  The 2 questions were as follows  

1) Q: Pursuant to the Site Authority’s reading of the Ground Sublease, votes would not be 
counted on a per capita basis, that is one household  - one vote for a total of 272 eligible 
voters.  Instead, the voting population would be the number of individual persons who 
were parties to a GSL. 
A: The GSL is explicit regarding the voting procedure and we are complying with that. 

25.11.2 SA reserves and maintains the right to amend the provisions of the Lease 
without the approval of Homeowner or the written consent of any Lender of 
Homeowner, and such amendment shall be deemed incorporated into this Sublease, 
except that any such amendment shall require the prior written approval of not less 
than sixty-six and two thirds percent (66-2/3%) of all Persons who are then 
sublessees under subleases for Sublease Parcels and at least fifty-one percent 
(51%) of their Lenders, if such amendment would (i) reduce the term of the Lease, 
(ii) effectively alter the rights and/or obligations of Homeowner and/or Lender under 
Sections 4 (other than with respect to calculations of Pro Rata Share), 6.2.2, 8.1, 13, 
16, 17, 18, 20.6, 21, 22, 24 or 25.11.2 of this Sublease, or (iii) eff 

2) Q: Whether a change to the GSL, however small and insignificant, should initiate from 
staff without prior approval of the Site Authority. 
A: Staff would never initiate a change to the Ground Sublease without prior approval of 
the Site Authority Board and that is true of the matter of standardizing Exhibit C. 

 
A homeowner wrote the Board on 11/18 asking for an explanation as to why activity related to 
$476,552 in collected reserve fees have been removed from UGlen’s June 2024 Year End financial 
statement. We recorded reserve income as a negative Expense, and in 23-24 we recorded reserve 
income as Revenue.  

91



 
The homeowner is only looking at the Expense accounts, and not seeing that the Revenue 
account is higher, which makes up the difference. 

 

 
 
The BAG has begun publishing an Agenda and sharing that 10 days in advance to increase 
transparency and the BAG has elected to hold votes on changes to the Budget.  Changes to the 
composition of the HAC representatives to the BAG are under consideration as well as possible 
changes to how the BAG operates. 
 
The HAC conducted a Survey or Homeowners to see if the homeowners now do not want water 
meters installed, and the results showed 89.9% of respondents did not.  Consequently, staff 
recommends that the project to install water meters be halted.  The letter from the HAC to 
President Yao is pasted below. This change does not require a vote of the Board. 
 
Kennedy Wilson has agreed to allow amplified music at a reasonable volume in the Town Center 
Courtyards as a sort of “Open Mic Night”. Site Authority Staff have made contact with the music 
department at CI to see if they may have students or faculty interested in playing a sort of “Open 
Mic” in Town Center Courtyard on weekend nights and they are supportive.  If any UGlen residents 
are interested in playing for tips, please let the HAC or me know.   I think this could be a really fun 
event for the entire community and one that we can collectively support. 
 
Work to clear out the Overflow Basin on the east side of UGlen park continues with it expected to 
be completed in 2025. 

 
HOME SALES REPORT 

 
There were 3 home sales between August 2024 and November 2024. Currently, there are 2 homes 
for sale. 

 
In November 2024 the median price for a home in Camarillo was $893,989 while the average price 
of a University Glen home sold in 2024 was $474,324.50 

 
As of November 2024, 32.7% of all University Glen Single Family Homes and Townhomes are 
owned by current Category 1-3 CSUCI Employees or CSUCI retirees. This is the same as the last 
Operations Report. 
 

92



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93



 
 
 
 
 
 
October 21, 2024 
 
[Name]  
[Address]  
Camarillo, CA 93012 
 
Dear [Name],  
 
As you likely know, the CSU Channel Islands (CSUCI) Site Authority (Site Authority) manages the 
University Glen (UG) residential community, which provides a unique and much-needed 
opportunity for CSUCI employees, military veterans, first responders, public servants and other 
residents of Ventura County to live in affordable housing near campus.  We greatly appreciate our 
working relationship with our residents and value your input.  
 
Why Are We Writing Today – Standardizing Exhibit C 
As discussed during our October 21st Homeowner Advisory Committee (HAC), we are writing 
today to notify existing townhome and single-family homeowners of our intent to update and 
standardize Exhibit C in all ground sublease agreements.  
 
Site Authority staff recently conducted an administrative and legal review of all past and present 
agreements and associated common area maintenance (CAM) fee exhibits, finding variations in 
historical documentation of Exhibit C.  As a result, we are asking all homeowners to review the 
instructions below and accept an updated Exhibit C so that all homeowner agreements are in 
conformity. 
 
CAM Fees Provide Important Benefits 
The Site Authority does not profit from CAM fees. All fees collected are used to fund a suite of 
benefits – landscaping, street maintenance, lighting, recreational features, insurance, and utilities 
– and build reserves to ensure that UGlen residents collectively enjoy a pleasant and safe 
community.  
 
Maintaining UG’s affordability is a top priority for the Site Authority. We bring the full weight of the 
CSU system to negotiate fair and reasonable rates for community services, particularly regarding 
utility and insurance costs. In response to broad community feedback about cost of living, the Site 
Authority recently transitioned to a new property management partner, Seabreeze Management 
Company, Inc., reducing the management fee by approximately 15%. In addition, we have 
reduced the increase in monthly Townhouse reserve contributions and removed the social 
committee to preserve funding. We welcome ongoing community input regarding the benefits 
covered by CAM fees – including potential future adjustments to the suite of services covered. 
 
Administrative Adjustment Required 
All homeowners have been historically assessed and charged a pro-rata, annually-adjusted CAM 
fee – sharing and paying equally in the services provided to the community. The pro-rata fee 
structure is consistent with standard practice and is reflected in the Site Authority’s open annual 
budgeting process, invoicing and homeowner payments.  
 
However, our administrative review found that the pro-rata fee structure that has been in place 
since the inception of UG has been inconsistently reflected in homeowners’ CAM fee exhibits. 
While all homeowners have always been charged and paid the appropriate pro-rata amount to 
fairly finance and distribute community services, the Site Authority is seeking to update Exhibit C 
to align the CAM pro-rata structure and bring everyone into uniformity.  

94



 
Next Steps and Required Actions  
The Site Authority has attached an updated and standardized CAM fee Exhibit C for all 
homeowners, which addresses both single-family dwellings and townhomes. This clarified Exhibit 
C now aligns with historic CAM fee collection practices based on a pro-rata share of the CAM 
budget.  
 
We ask that all homeowners review and accept the attached CAM fee exhibit. This necessary 
update to Exhibit C requires the written approval of two-thirds of UG homeowners, which we are 
collecting via an online survey form linked here and the QR code below. If you would prefer to 
sign a paper copy of this approval form, or if you have any questions, please email 
siteauthority@csuci.edu or call us at 805-608-5411. We request your approval of the updated 
Exhibit C by November 22.    
 
Ensuring Transparency and Accountability  
We appreciate our residents’ collaboration and patience while we undertake this effort to 
standardize documentation for all homeowners. We are working to modernize and digitize record-
keeping to ensure that information is consistent and accessible.  
 
Moving forward, the Site Authority will continue publishing CAM fee services and rates online. In 
addition, we have implemented monthly reporting from the Property Management Company to 
both the HAC and the Budget Advisory Group (BAG), as well as providing the Site Authority 
Board quarterly reports on the status of the reserves and how they are invested in CAL Trust. 
Additionally, the BAG now meets year-round to provide additional engagement from property 
owners on the UG CAM budget.  
 
For more than 20 years, the Site Authority has managed and maintained CSU land and 
community resources – we are proud to offer safe, affordable housing and a thriving environment 
for our residents. Thank you for your understanding as we begin a new chapter of collaboration 
with our diverse residential community in harmony with our University. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
          
  
 
 
Bradley Olin, Ed.D. 
CSUCI Site Authority Treasurer 
CSUCI Vice President for Business & Financial Affairs/CFO  
 
 
 
 

 

Survey-Ex C Update 

95

https://csuci.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_6V7pN5HRMyPADTE
mailto:siteauthority@csuci.edu


 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
CI POWER/DWR UPDATE 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
CI Power currently operates under a 5-year agreement with the California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) to provide power to the grid in times of extreme emergency. The agreement is in effect from January 
2023 – December 2027. CI Power was previously designated a Reliability Must Run (RMR) plant by the 
California Independent System Operator (CAISO) from May 2020 through December 2022.  
 
CURRENT STATUS  
 
On September 2, 2024, the plant received an advance notice from its Scheduling Coordinator, Shell, that 
CAISO had issued an Exceptional Dispatch (ED) in the next 1-2 days.  Jeff and the plant staff initiated the 
warming procedures to prepare the plant for dispatch.  The plant responded and successfully met its 
availability standards for the entire 12-hour dispatch.  The availability of the plant was % of the expected hourly 
output of 27.5 MW. 
 
CI Power staff continues to meet the DWR bi-weekly to discuss and monitor ongoing plant operations. 
 
The pass-through billing process is behind by several months.  DWR has a very detailed review process and is 
behind.  IN addition, there were some errors in the capacity bonus payments for the July and September 
dispatches, as well as a discrepancy in the dispatch Major Maintenance Adder. The total amount of the 
discrepancy is less than $1,000.  These issues are expected to be resolved by November 15, 2024. 
 
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) approved docket ER24-1585 on May 15, 2024, approving 
the Settlement Agreement between CSUCI, CAISO and the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). It 
was agreed between the parties that CSUCI will receive a net relief of $644,531 for the Resource Adequacy 
Availability Incentive Mechanism (RAAIM) charges incurred during the extended unplanned outage in February 
– July of 2022.  The settlement refunds CSUCI 50% of the original $1,289,000 penalty.   
 
CPUC Settlement Agreement Update: CAISO performs all transactions through a complicated market 
settlement system according to its Business Practice Manual (BPM). It has implemented a very complex refund 
process that involves several steps and invoices.  So far CSUCI has received a net refund of $34,980. We are 
awaiting further invoices to assess whether the mechanism for the refund is functioning as expected. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  None. 

 
 SITE AUTHORITY  

 
Agenda Item #11 
Information Item 

December 2, 2024 

96



9/30/2024 9/30/2023 Variance

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 6,296,564        1 13,672,307       (7,375,743)           
Accounts receivable 2,314,071        2 957,127            1,356,944            
Related party receivable 645,847           3 129,728            516,119               
Prepaid expenses 78,188             14,775              63,413                 

        9,334,670         14,773,937            (5,439,267)
Noncurrent assets:

Investments 14,151,827      4           3,675,848            10,475,979 
Other assets 4,639,775        5,105,625                       (465,850)
Capital assets, net 32,298,271              34,739,878            (2,441,607)

      51,089,873         43,521,351              7,568,522 

Total assets       60,424,543         58,295,288              2,129,255 

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 118,958           279,382            (160,424)              
Deferred revenue 1,108,179        1,118,810         (10,631)                
PPP liability, current 1,904,015        1,841,444         62,571                 
Lease liability, current 179,154           170,471            8,683                   
Other current liabilities 2,602,052        5 2,898,434         (296,382)              
Interest payable 416,185           346,467            69,718                 
Related party payable 317,188           93,134              224,054               

        6,645,731           6,748,142               (102,411)

Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease obligations 46,250,000      6         48,670,000            (2,420,000)
PPP liability, noncurrent 31,002,927      6 32,822,424                  (1,819,497)
Lease liability, noncurrent 488,846           6 668,000                          (179,154)
Capital reserve (CAM) 108,837           119,138                            (10,301)

      77,850,610         82,279,562            (4,428,952)

Total liabilities       84,496,341         89,027,704            (4,531,363)

Net position:
Net position      (24,071,797)       (30,732,416)              6,660,619 

Total net position      (24,071,797)       (30,732,416)              6,660,619 

6. Decrease is due to payment of debt.

4. The increase is primarily due to $9.5M of cash transfer from Wells Fargo. Previously CalTrust was included in 
Cash & Cash Equivalent
5. This is composed of $2.4M of Library Debt.

California State University Channel Islands Site Authority
Statement of Net Position

As of September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total current assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total current liabilities

(Unaudited)

1. The decrease is primarily due to a $9.5M cash transfer from Wells Fargo to CalTRUST. Previously CalTrust was 
included in Cash & Cash Equivalent
2. This consists of RAAIM penalty reimbursement of $644K and  three months of DWR reimbursable expenses due of 
$952K.  In addition, Anacapa CAM reserve and sublease rent due in the amount of $197K.
3. The increase is due to five months of student housing subsidy due from the campus.

Page 1 of 5 97



East Campus

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Property tax -                -                 -                2,000,000     0%
Special tax 655               -                 655               852,000        0%
Other revenue -                -                 -                -                0%

Total revenues 655               -                 655               2,852,000     0%

Expenses:
Operations 52,909          1 5,775             47,134          510,000        10%
Depreciation -                -                 -                2,257,240     0%
Interest expense -                -                 -                1,342,981     0%
LAPT -                -                 -                650,000        0%
Transfer -                -                 -                0%

Total expenses 52,909          5,775             47,134          4,760,221     1%

Net increase/(decrease) (52,254)         (5,775)            (46,479)         (1,908,221)    3%
Footnote:

Library Debt

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Contributions to debt service                   -                      -                     -        2,486,683 0%
Other revenue                   -                     -   

Total revenues                   -                      -                     -        2,486,683 0%

Expenses:
Operations                   -                      -                     -                     -   0%
Interest expense                   -                      -                     -           871,886 0%
Depreciation                   -                      -                     -                     -   0%

Total expenses                   -                      -                     -           871,886 0%

Net increase/(decrease)                   -                      -                     -        1,614,797 0%
Footnote:

CI Power

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Energy sales         418,107           390,000           28,107      1,026,630 41%
Other revenue         530,895 1           337,580         193,315      1,722,170 31%

Total revenues         949,002           727,580         221,422      2,748,800 35%

Expenses:

California State University Channel Islands Site Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023
(Unaudited)

1. Contract services: Debris Basin

Page 2 of 5 98



California State University Channel Islands Site Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023
(Unaudited)

Cost of energy sales         176,856 2             43,940         132,916         879,785 20%
Operations         133,958           124,091             9,867         842,385 16%
Interest expense                   -                      -                     -                     -   0%
Depreciation                   -                      -                     -                     -   0%

Total expenses         310,814           168,031         142,783      1,722,170 18%

Net increase/(decrease)         638,188           559,549           78,639      1,026,630 62%

Footnote:

University Glen Common Area Maintenance (CAM)

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Maintenance rent         588,916 1           538,082           50,834      2,450,273 24%
Other revenue                956                    -                  956                   -   0%

Total revenues         589,872           538,082           51,790      2,450,273 24%

Expenses:
Operations         289,672           566,054        (276,382)      2,450,273 12%
Transfers 2           (27,972)           27,972                   -   0%

Total expenses         289,672           538,082        (248,410)      2,450,273 12%

Net increase/(decrease)         300,200 2                    -           300,200                   -   

Footnote: 

University Glen CAM Reserves

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Maintenance rent         140,328           119,138           21,190         544,511 26%
Other revenue         102,268 1             29,560           72,708         119,100 86%

Total revenues         242,596           148,698           93,898         663,611 37%

Expenses:
Operations           31,490             15,424           16,066      1,254,488 3%
Transfers                   -   2             27,972          (27,972)                   -   0%

Total expenses           31,490             43,396          (11,906)      1,254,488 3%

Net increase/(decrease)         211,106           105,302         105,804        (590,877) -36%
Footnote:

1. Increase due  reimbursement from DWR.  Prior year includes RAAIM penalty accruals  off set by DWR revenue. 

2. Increase is due to plant  producing energy.   Prior fiscal year the plant was operating in test and maintenance status.  

1. Other revenue consists of investment gains.

1. Increase due to an increase in CAM fee.

2.  Historically for presentation only,  net increase/decrease presented as a transfer to reserves.  

Page 3 of 5 99



California State University Channel Islands Site Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023
(Unaudited)

University Glen Apartments & Faculty/Staff Housing Subsidy Program

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Other revenue 135,849        141,179         (5,330)           760,265        18%

Total revenues 135,849        141,179         (5,330)           760,265        18%

Expenses:
Operations 51,086          1 22,792           28,294          247,774        21%

Total expenses 51,086          22,792           28,294          247,774        21%

Net increase/(decrease) 84,763          118,387         (33,624)         512,491        17%
Footnote:

Anacapa Canyon

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Other revenue         226,000 1             20,000         206,000 #      1,175,000 19%

Total revenues         226,000             20,000         206,000      1,175,000 19%

Expenses:
Operations                   -               13,204          (13,204)           38,925 0%

Total expenses                   -               13,204          (13,204)           38,925 0%

Net increase/(decrease)         226,000               6,796         219,204      1,136,075 20%
Footnote:

Anacapa CAM Reserves 

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Maintenance rent           78,584 1                    -             78,584         314,337 25%
Other revenue                  34                    -                    34             4,650 1%

Total revenues           78,618                    -             78,618         318,987 25%

Expenses:
Operations                    -                     -                     -   0%
Transfers                    -                     -                     -   0%

Total expenses                   -                      -                     -                     -   0%

Net increase/(decrease)           78,618                    -             78,618         318,987 25%
Footnote:

1. Increase due to eight months of vacancy of eight subsidized apartments.

1. Primarily revenue received for ground sublease rent.

2.  Historically for presentation only,  net increase/decrease presented as a transfer from CAM.  

Page 4 of 5 100



California State University Channel Islands Site Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023
(Unaudited)

Anacapa Apartments: Market Rate & Age Restricted

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Maintenance rent                   -                      -                     -                     -   0%
Other revenue         161,414 1                    -           161,414         687,960 23%

Total revenues         161,414                    -           161,414         687,960 23%

Expenses:
Operations                   -                      -                     -                     -   0%

Total expenses                   -                      -                     -                     -   0%

Net increase/(decrease)         161,414                    -           161,414         687,960 
Footnote: 

Administrative

9/30/2024 9/30/2023  Change 
 Annual 
Budget 

% Used

Revenues:
Home sales           15,277 1               8,126             7,151             5,000 306%
Sales tax                   -                      -                     -                     -   
Other revenue         254,202 2             90,258 163,944        315,000        0%

Total revenues         269,479             98,384         171,095         320,000 84%

Expenses:
Operations           80,788 3           182,936        (102,148)         491,223 16%
Depreciation                412                  410                    2                   -   0%

Total expenses           81,200           183,346        (102,146)         491,223 17%

Net increase/(decrease)         188,279           (84,962)         273,241        (171,223) -110%
Footnote:

3. Decrease in  Cost Recovery charges.  Two quarters to be charged in Q2.

1. Quarterly reserve contributions from approximately 35 new homeowners that occupy dwellings in Anacapa Canyon.

1. University Glen home sales  1% transfer fee revenue.
2. Increase primarily due to investment  income from Cal Trust.

1. Occupancy of 97 units of 310 total market rate apartment units and all 170 units of the age restricted apartments.

Page 5 of 5 101



Please note that this information should not be construed as tax advice and it is recommended that you consult with a tax professional regarding your account.

Investment Account Summary
10/01/2024 through 10/31/2024

CalTRUST
PO Box 2709
Granite Bay, CA 95746
www.caltrust.org
Email: admin@caltrust.org
Fax: 402-963-9094
Phone: 833-CALTRUST (225-8787)

Page 1 of 40000149-0000313 PDFT     709184               

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS 

Fund
Account
Number

Total Shares
Owned

Net Asset Value
per Share on

Oct 31  ($)

Value on
Oct 31 ($)

Average Cost
Amount ($)

Cumulative
  Change in

Value ($)

CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY 20100029330

CalTRUST Short Term Fund 20100029330 307,534.673 10.07 3,096,874.16 3,084,760.37 12,113.79

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund 20100029330 525,766.655 9.83 5,168,286.22 5,121,791.14 46,495.08

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund 20100029330 1,546,431.300 1.00 1,546,431.30 1,546,431.30 0.00

Total For Account - 20100029330 9,811,591.68

CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS TOWNHOUSE 20100029340

CalTRUST Short Term Fund 20100029340 52,522.207 10.07 528,898.62 528,369.67 528.95

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund 20100029340 149,240.074 9.83 1,467,029.93 1,505,674.99 (38,645.06)

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund 20100029340 696,166.300 1.00 696,166.30 696,166.30 0.00

Total For Account - 20100029340 2,692,094.85

CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS COMMON AREA MAINTENA
NCE

20100029350

CalTRUST Short Term Fund 20100029350 16,805.418 10.07 169,230.56 169,155.30 75.26

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund 20100029350 90,173.520 9.83 886,405.70 905,910.52 (19,504.82)

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund 20100029350 435,451.920 1.00 435,451.92 435,451.92 0.00

Total For Account - 20100029350 1,491,088.18

CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SINGLE FAMILY 20100029360

CalTRUST Short Term Fund 20100029360 1,215.041 10.07 12,235.46 12,230.04 5.42

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund 20100029360 7,743.483 9.83 76,118.44 77,395.31 (1,276.87)

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund 20100029360 26,115.520 1.00 26,115.52 26,115.52 0.00

Total For Account - 20100029360 114,469.42

CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY ANACA
PA UG PHASE 2 TOWNHOMES

20100029970

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund 20100029970 912.227 9.83 8,967.19 8,985.41 (18.22)

Total For Account - 20100029970 8,967.19

CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY ANACA
PA UG PHASE 2 SINGLE FAMILY

20100029980

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund 20100029980 211.346 9.83 2,077.53 2,081.75 (4.22)

Total For Account - 20100029980 2,077.53

CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY ANACA
PA UG PHASE 2 CAM

20100029990

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund 20100029990 4,240.355 9.83 41,682.69 41,767.40 (84.71)

Total For Account - 20100029990 41,682.69

Portfolios Total value as of 10/31/2024 14,161,971.54

102



Please note that this information should not be construed as tax advice and it is recommended that you consult with a tax professional regarding your account.

Page 2 of 4

DETAIL OF TRANSACTION ACTIVITY
Activity
Description

Activity
Date

Amount
($)

Amount
in Shares

Balance
in Shares

Price per
Share ($) Balance ($)

Average
 Cost Amt ($)

Realized
Gain/(Loss) ($)

CalTRUST Short Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY Account Number: 20100029330
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 306,324.970 10.10 3,093,882.20
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 12,181.71 1,209.703 307,534.673 10.07 3,096,874.16 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (9,189.75)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 307,534.673 10.07 3,096,874.16

CalTRUST Short Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS TOWNHOUSE Account Number: 20100029340
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 52,315.608 10.10 528,387.64
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 2,080.45 206.599 52,522.207 10.07 528,898.62 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (1,569.47)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 52,522.207 10.07 528,898.62

CalTRUST Short Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS COMMON AREA MAINTENA
NCE

Account Number: 20100029350

Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 16,739.313 10.10 169,067.06
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 665.68 66.105 16,805.418 10.07 169,230.56 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (502.18)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 16,805.418 10.07 169,230.56

CalTRUST Short Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SINGLE FAMILY Account Number: 20100029360
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 1,210.261 10.10 12,223.64
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 48.13 4.780 1,215.041 10.07 12,235.46 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (36.31)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 1,215.041 10.07 12,235.46

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY Account Number: 20100029330
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 523,893.642 9.94 5,207,502.80
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 18,411.72 1,873.013 525,766.655 9.83 5,168,286.22 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (57,628.30)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 525,766.655 9.83 5,168,286.22

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS TOWNHOUSE Account Number: 20100029340
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 148,708.415 9.94 1,478,161.65
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 5,226.21 531.659 149,240.074 9.83 1,467,029.93 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (16,357.93)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 149,240.074 9.83 1,467,029.93

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS COMMON AREA MAINTENA
NCE

Account Number: 20100029350

Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 89,852.282 9.94 893,131.68
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 3,157.77 321.238 90,173.520 9.83 886,405.70 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (9,883.75)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 90,173.520 9.83 886,405.70

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SINGLE FAMILY Account Number: 20100029360
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 7,715.897 9.94 76,696.02
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 271.17 27.586 7,743.483 9.83 76,118.44 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (848.75)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 7,743.483 9.83 76,118.44

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY ANACA
PA UG PHASE 2 TOWNHOMES

Account Number: 20100029970

Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 0.000 9.94 0.00
Purchase 10/22/2024 8,975.08 911.176 911.176 9.85 8,975.08 0.00 0.00
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 10.33 1.051 912.227 9.83 8,967.19 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (18.22)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 912.227 9.83 8,967.19

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY ANACA
PA UG PHASE 2 SINGLE FAMILY

Account Number: 20100029980

Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 0.000 9.94 0.00
Purchase 10/22/2024 2,079.36 211.103 211.103 9.85 2,079.36 0.00 0.00
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 2.39 0.243 211.346 9.83 2,077.53 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (4.22)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 211.346 9.83 2,077.53

103



Please note that this information should not be construed as tax advice and it is recommended that you consult with a tax professional regarding your account.

Page 3 of 4

DETAIL OF TRANSACTION ACTIVITY
Activity
Description

Activity
Date

Amount
($)

Amount
in Shares

Balance
in Shares

Price per
Share ($) Balance ($)

Average
 Cost Amt ($)

Realized
Gain/(Loss) ($)

CalTRUST Medium Term Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY ANACA
PA UG PHASE 2 CAM

Account Number: 20100029990

Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 0.000 9.94 0.00
Purchase 10/22/2024 41,719.38 4,235.470 4,235.470 9.85 41,719.38 0.00 0.00
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 48.02 4.885 4,240.355 9.83 41,682.69 0.00 0.00
Change in Value (84.71)

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 4,240.355 9.83 41,682.69

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SITE AUTHORITY Account Number: 20100029330
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 1,539,917.190 1.00 1,539,917.19
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 6,514.11 6,514.110 1,546,431.300 1.00 1,546,431.30 0.00 0.00
Change in Value 0.00

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 1,546,431.300 1.00 1,546,431.30

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS TOWNHOUSE Account Number: 20100029340
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 693,233.810 1.00 693,233.81
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 2,932.49 2,932.490 696,166.300 1.00 696,166.30 0.00 0.00
Change in Value 0.00

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 696,166.300 1.00 696,166.30

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS COMMON AREA MAINTENA
NCE

Account Number: 20100029350

Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 433,617.650 1.00 433,617.65
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 1,834.27 1,834.270 435,451.920 1.00 435,451.92 0.00 0.00
Change in Value 0.00

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 435,451.920 1.00 435,451.92

CalTRUST Liquidity Fund CSU CHANNEL ISLANDS SINGLE FAMILY Account Number: 20100029360
Beginning Balance 10/01/2024 26,005.510 1.00 26,005.51
Accrual Income Div Reinvestment 10/31/2024 110.01 110.010 26,115.520 1.00 26,115.52 0.00 0.00
Change in Value 0.00

Closing Balance as of Oct 31 26,115.520 1.00 26,115.52

104



2024 CalTRUST Closures

Please note that the CalTRUST Funds will be closed for trading on the
following days: 

Date Holiday

January 1, 2024 New Year•s Day

January 15, 2024 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

February 19, 2024 Presidents' Day

March 29, 2024 Good Friday

May 27, 2024 Memorial Day

June 19, 2024 Juneteenth National Independence Day

July 4, 2024 Independence Day

September 2, 2024 Labor Day

October 14, 2024 Indigenous Peoples Day

November 11, 2024 Veterans Day

November 28, 2024 Thanksgiving Day

December 25, 2024 Christmas Day

EARLY CLOSES:
March 28, May 24, July 3, November 29, December 24, and December 31

Page 4 of 4
105



Draft ver. 10/31/2024 

2025 Calendar of Board Meetings 

Meetings will be held: 

In-person or virtually via teleconference as allowed 

Standard Meeting Time: 11:30 a.m. 

Site Authority & Financing Authority 

Regular meetings occur every quarter, typically on a 

Monday Monday, March 3rd  

Monday, June 9th   

Monday, September 8th  6:00 p.m. 

Monday, December 1st   

S ITE AUTHORITY  
F INANCING AUTHORITY 
CSU Channel Islands  

106


	2024-12-2 SA FA Agenda.pdf
	Item 5_SA Minutes 09.09.24.pdf
	Item 6_Audit Exit Meeting Minutes 9.17.24.pdf
	Item 7_2023-24 CSUCI Site Authority Financial Statements.pdf
	Item 8_2023-24 CSUCI  Financing Authority Financial Statements.pdf
	Item 9_ Anacapa Canyon Operations Report 12-2-2024.pdf
	Item 10_SA Operations Report 12-2-24.pdf
	Item 11__CI Power_DWR Update.pdf
	Item 12_Final SA Board reports Q1.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement 

	Item 13_Oct24 CalTrust.pdf
	Item 14_2025 Calendar of Meetings -Draft 11.1.24.pdf



